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21
22

CHAIR MOLINA:

(Gavel.)

Public Works and Traffic

23

Committee meeting for November 4th is now in

24

session.

25

attendance the Vice Chairperson of the Committee

Good morning, Members.

We have in
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1

Charmaine Tavares, Member Riki Hokama.

2

members Dain Kane and Joe Pontanilla.

Excused are

We have from the Corporation Counsel's office

3

4

Ms. cindy Young, along with the Director of Public

5

Works and Environmental Management Mr. Gilbert

6

Coloma-Agaran.

7

Committee Secretary Jo-Ann Sato and Committee

8

Analyst Mr. Lance Taguchi.

Committee staff, we have our

We have two items on our agenda, Members, but

9

10

before we do that we'll go ahead and begin with

11

public testimony first.

12

Couple of ground rules to go over before we

13

begin with testimony.

14

to testify with a minute to conclude.

15

your name and whatever organization you represent,

16

and please turn off all cell phones and pagers.

Please state

And the Chair now welcomes Committee Member

17

18

You will have three minutes

Pontanilla to our proceedings today.

19

So with that being said, let us start first

20

with testimony.

21

Cochran who will be testifying on Item 20.

22

there to the podium, sir.

25

Right

••• BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY •••

23

24

First to testify, we have Billy

MR. COCHRAN:

Good morning, Council Members.

for letting me coming here to speak.

Thank you
I'm speaking
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1

for my wife, really.

2

parking in the front of the business, our business,

3

in Paia, Upper Paia.

4

Mary Cochran applied for

We request one-hour parking be installed from

5

the new post office down to Hana Highway like it is

6

downtown now.

7

parking downtown from Mana going on down to Hana

8

Highway already with signs posted.

9

non-striped and no parking stalls in place.

Presently they've got one-hour

Ours is
And

10

they park in our

11

downtown to work or shop, which we have business in

12

the mornings and the afternoons that we need this

13

parking space badly.

14

next to us is also involved in it.

15

massage parlor next to us, it's also a business that

16

needs parking.

Not only us but the restaurant

Thank you very much.

17

18

front of our business, walk

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

And there's a

That's about it.

Thank you very much, Mr. Cochran.

19

Committee Members, any questions for the testifier?

20

seeing none, thank you.

21

Befofe we begin testimony for our next

22

testifier, the Chair welcomes Committee Member Kane

23

to our proceedings.

24

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

25

CHAIR MOLINA:

Thank you, Chair.

Next to testify on Item 20 is Mr. Mercer
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2

5

"Chubby" Vicens.
MR. VICENS:

Good morning, Mr. Chairman and members of the

3

Public Works and Traffic Committee.

4

Mercer "Chubby" Vicens, and today I'm speaking on

5

behalf of myself as a Sprecke1svi11e resident and

6

knowing a little bit about the situation over in --

7

in Paia town.

8
9

My name is

When considering what you ultimately need to
do, you need to consider that Paia is -- has now

10

become a destination.

11

-- to walk the town, to share the ambience, and at

12

the same time the employees have a very difficult

13

situation because parking is very, very limited.

14

I don't know that on-street and -- or time-

15

restricted -- you can in fact post.

16

going to enforce?

17

People come from all walks to

How you're

Several years back we lost our community

18

policeman, has not been replaced.

19

fill in from -- from Makawao and other areas, have

20

not been able to really have someone there

21

full-time.

22

would be fairly fool hearty to be able to put in

23

rules that you cannot back up.

24
25

So

They've tried to

So what I'm saying, I guess, is that it

So, you know, I think that ultimately this
group and the Council should consider additional
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1

parking in the upper reaches of Paia town because I

2

think that is -- is one of the solutions.
Excuse me.

3

I apologize, Mr. Kane.

I know

4

you always ask us to turn our sets off and I -- I

5

apologize again.
But anyway, I think that that's a solution

6
7

and -- and trying to convince the employees that

8

they shouldn't be parking on -- on the road.

9

Paia parking lot after much discussion and -- and

The

10

abuse, really, has become a real asset to the town.

11

That parking lot is half to three-quarter full all

12

the time, even at night when they go to the

13

restaurants.

So it's

it's working.

People that go to the beach are parking

14
15

there.

16

road is additional parking near the Paia Youth

17

Center to take care of the beach-goers so that you

18

separate the -- the visitor and the people shopping

19

in the town from the people enjoying the beach.

20

that might be a solution.

21

So maybe another ultimate solution down the

So

So again, I -- I bring forward to you two

22

things that are plausible, are feasible, and

and

23

with -- if with the political will available to the

24

public and that's providing more parking off

25

off-street for Paia town.

Again, the idea of -- of
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1

time-restricted is great, but I think all you got to

2

do is visit there and you'll know that making that

3

happen is -- is a very, very difficult task.

4

you very much.

5

CHAIR MOLINA:

Thank you, Mr. Vicens.

6

questions for the testifier?

7

you.

10
11

12

Committee Members,

Seeing none, thank

Next to testify on Item 20 we have Jocelyn

8
9

Thank

Perreira.
MS. PERREIRA:

Good morning, Council Members, and I'd like

to congratulate all of you on your re-election.
I'm here today -- my name is Jocelyn

13

Perreira.

14

Street Program Coordinator and I am representing

15

Deborah Schonewill for -- the Chair of the Paia Main

16

Street Association.

17

what we'd like to state about this particular item

18

is that there needs to be a little bit more

19

discussion, we believe, with the -- with the -- the

20

merchants in the area so there is a better

21

understanding.

22

I'm here today as the Tri-Isle Main

She's away on vacation.

And

As Mr. Vicens said and as we know, Paia is a

23

destination walking town and we don't want to

24

discourage that because we believe more and more it

25

is becoming a destination point and you are going to
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1

have to have the opportunity to reasonably park and

2

spend some time in the town to patronize the

3

businesses or the restaurants and what have you and

4

not have to worry that you have to run out and go

5

move your car and have some of the craziness like

6

we've had on Market street in Wailuku in the past

7

that, you know, people run in, run out, move their

8

cars, move it back, so on and so forth.
However, we do also sympathize with the

9

10

person that wrote the concern, Mrs. Cochran, because

11

she is a little off the beaten track and she's more

12

in the professional service sector, I would say,

13

more so than in the -- in the immediate heart of

14

town.

15

Part of the problem is the management of

16

parking, the existing, and I think that there has to

17

be a little bit of time to look at how it can be

18

better managed because as Mr. Vicens has said and I

19

agree, enforcement is -- is at issue here.

20

put up all the signs you want, but if you don't have

21

enforcement, if you don't have a Keith Taguma in

22

Paia, then you have a problem, you know.

23

appreciate, let me tell you, we really appreciate

24

Keith because he keeps everybody honest.

25

You can

We

And the last thing I wanted to say was that
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1

not having a community-oriented police officer

2

walking the beat in Paia has really

3

been detrimental to the town in our opinion because

4

these small towns, as they are growing in that

5

desirability and so on and so forth, really are

6

requiring having that person on the street, the

7

go-to person.

8

helps with the traffic and parking situation as

9

well.

has really

It gives them an added safety.

It

And thank you for allowing me to say that.

10

The last thing I want to bring to your

11

attention is by David Spees Building, recently they

12

took out vertical parking and they put some parallel

13

parking.

14

and Gay is going to help me see if this is accurate,

15

from engineering, they said they had a work order

16

from the Police Department to change the vertical

17

parking to parallel parking.

18

And what -- what I was able to find out

I just bring it to your attention because

19

that was done without even having a discussion with

20

the community.

21

them, wiped out the lines because they need the

22

the vertical parking.

23

right, but just imagine if this happened in Makawao

24

town that somebody just had a work order and were

25

changing it all parallel.

The community, actually some of

I'm not saying that that's

It would be all hell
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1

would break loose.

2

of --

3

MR. TAGUCHI:

4

MS. PERREIRA:

5

8
9

10

13

-- understanding little bit better on the

Thank you very much for this opportunity to
discuss this issue with you.
CHAIR MOLINA:

Aloha.

Thank you, Ms. Perreira.

Committee

Members, questions for the testifier?

Seeing none,

thank you.
Next to testify on Item 20 we have Rob

11

12

Three minutes.

parking as it is.

6

7

So we need to have some kind

Parsons.
MR. PARSONS:

Good morning, Chair, Committee Members, nice

14

to see you.

15

Arakawa and I'm also regionally assigned to North

16

Shore communities.

17

on the time-restricted parking in Paia, I did notify

18

community associations in Spreckelsville, Paia and

19

Haiku.

20

Merchants member and I want to read that, read some

21

of what she wrote back because I think it will shed

22

some light on the particular request that's before

23

you today.

24
25

Rob Parsons, I'm an assistant to Mayor

So when I saw this agenda item

I did get a response back from one Paia

And I would also note that as a former North
Shore member, I've participated for a number of
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1

years in discussions about traffic and parking in

2

Paia.

3

the one point about changing angle parking to

4

parallel parking in front of the David Spees

5

Building because it did result in a net loss of

6

parking stalls, and that I think is a concern to

7

some people.

And I'm -- I'm glad Jocelyn brought up the

But let me go ahead and read what response I

8
9

got.

It said, this is from a Merchants Association

10

member:

11

Building and David Spees Building already has

12

one-hour time-restricted parking although it doesn't

13

do any good since it's not enforced.

14

letter to Mike Molina asking for parking restriction

15

signs up in front of Fresh Mint, Paia Plantation,

16

Massage Therapist Office and the Garcia Building.

17

Those are in need of parking for their customers.

18

They say that many times people park there for

19

several hours or all day and there's no parking for

20

their customers.

21

Hana Highway or Lower Baldwin Avenue at all and as

22

such no one really objects that I know of.

23

All of Baldwin Avenue up to the Ikeda

So I

Mary sent a

It won't affect the merchants on

I wrote back and I asked was this

24

discussed at a Merchants Association meeting, have

25

they had the opportunity to review it before their
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board.

And she said:

This subject was brought up

2

at the last Merchant meeting.

3

objections from anyone in attendance.

4

pretty much of the same opinion that there has to be

5

parking available for customers of businesses.

6

doesn't -- this doesn't seem to be any kind of an

7

issue and we took it as only a small request to the

8

county.

There were no
We were all

This

Apparently, the real problem up there is that

9

10

many of the old houses on Malia street and Ulumau

11

street rent out rooms and there is not enough

12

parking for all the residents.

13

to park down around the corner on Baldwin Avenue.

14

They park there not only overnight but much of the

15

time all day or a good portion of the day taking up

16

any parking which might be available for the

17

businesses.

18

park up the street or across in the post office

19

parking lot.

20

customers park in the post office, they come out and

21

chase them off about half the time.

22

place for customer parking.

25

Restaurant patrons at night have to

During the day when these businesses'

There's just no

So that's the input that I wanted you to hear

23

24

They are told just

this morning.
CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you.
Thank you, Mr. Parsons.

Committee
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13

Members, questions?

committee Secretary, has there been anyone

2
3

Seeing none, thank you.

else signed up to testify today?

4

MS. SATO:

No.

5

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

If there's anyone in the gallery, we

6

have our two items, Item 20 and Item 32, anyone else

7

would like to testify?

8

objections, the Chair will close public testimony

9

for today.

10

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

11

CHAIR MOLINA:

12
13

Seeing none, if there's no

No objections.

Okay.

Thank you very much, Members .

••• END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY •••
ITEM NO. 20:

TIME-RESTRICTED PARKING ON BALDWIN AVENUE
(PAIA) (C.C. 04-183)

14
15

CHAIR MOLINA:

We will take up first Item No. 20 which has

16

to do with the time-restricted parking on Baldwin

17

Avenue.

18

correspondence from Mary Cochran, President of the

19

Paia Plantation, Incorporated, requesting that

20

time-restricted parking on Baldwin Avenue in Paia

21

occur.

22

Baldwin Avenue request the same time-restricted

23

parking currently enforced throughout Paia town, and

24

the businesses have noted that parking is taken by

25

individuals that remain there throughout the day

The Committee is in receipt of a

Businesses along the upper portion of
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1

therefore impacting the ability of parking for their

2

customers.
As Chair of the Committee, I requested that

3

4

the Director of Public Works and Environmental

5

Management look into Ms. Cochran's request and

6

assist her in bringing this matter before the

7

Traffic Safety Council for comments.
At this time I'd like to turn over the floor

8
9

to Mr. Coloma-Agaran for his comments as well as any

10

comments made by the Traffic Safety Council.

11

Agaran?

12

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

Mr.

As a number of

13

the testifiers have pointed out, currently in Paia

14

you do have one-hour restrictions on both sides of

15

Baldwin Avenue from Hana Highway to what we call Pua

16

Lane.

17

extend the restricted parking area above 400 feet up

18

up Baldwin Avenue to where Ms. Cochran's business

19
20

What this request would entail would be to

is located and where the post office is.
I think what you're -- what we're passing out

21

now are some photographs that were taken by Noly

22

Yagin from our Engineering Division.

23

yourself, the first photo is a photo of Baldwin

24

Avenue looking uphill in the Makawao direction.

25

building immediately on the left, not the right,

To orient
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1

with the arch doorway is where the Cochran business

2

is located.

3

is where she's requesting the one-hour parking

4

restriction.

5

and Melia Place is right behind the utility pole

6

that's shown in the photograph adjacent to the

7

business building.

The Paia post office is on the right

The second photo is a photo of Baldwin Avenue

8
9

The area directly fronting her business

looking in the Hana Highway direction approximately

10

40 feet downhill of where the first photograph was

11

taken.

12

just downhill of that is Pua Lane.

13

down towards Hana Highway is where we currently have

14

one-hour parking restrictions.

In the distance is a speed limit sign and
So from Pua Lane

Currently, the code -- finally, the third

15
16

photo was taken at Pua Lane looking in the direction

17

of Hana Highway.
We did submit this request for a review by

18
19

the Traffic Safety Council and they had no comments

20

on any safety concerns.

21

presents is really a policy decision by the Council

22

on if you want to extend parking restrictions to

23

some point along Baldwin Avenue.

24
25

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

So really, what this

Thank you, Mr. Director.

Committee

Members, any questions for Mr. Coloma-Agaran on this
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matter?

2

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

3

Member Tavares?
Yeah, what opportunities are there in

the area for public parking off-street?

4

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

5

Foods.

6

some people probably park a little bit longer at the

7

post office than they would be if they're just going

8

to the post office.

9

There is the parking lot near Mana

That's probably the closest.

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

I know that

So that's in the third photo beyond

10

the building on the right is the -- the County

11

parking lot?

12

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

13

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

14

Yes.
And you said this was how far from

this woman's place of business?

15

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

16

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

17

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

That's about 400 feet.
Four hundred feet?
Well, where the photo was taken is

18

about 400 feet.

19

if I can ask Rob.

20

the public parking lot from -- from Pua Lane?

21
22

CHAIR MOLINA:

So that parking lot is probably
How far away is the parking lot,

Members, any objections having Mr. Parsons

come up and --

23

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

24

CHAIR MOLINA:

25

MR. PARSONS:

No objection.

Mr. Parsons, if you will.
Rob Parsons.

Could you rephrase your
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2

question again, Gil?
MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

I didn't quite get that.

The question is -- is -- from Member

3

Tavares is, where is the location of the Paia

4

parking lot in relation to Pua Lane?

5

MR. PARSONS:

The Paia municipal parking lot on Baldwin

6

Avenue is just above Mana Foods, just below Ikeda

7

Building, and probably I would estimate 3- to 400

8

feet below that street.

9
10

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

Is there a time limit in the

municipal parking lot?

11

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

12

MR. PARSONS:

13

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

Actually, I don't believe there is.

No, I don't believe so.

14

to in there?

15

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

So you can park overnight if you want

I -- I believe we have to check the

16

code, but I don't believe we

17

parking.

18

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

19

CHAIR MOLINA:

we allow overnight

Overnight?

Member Tavares, if you want, I can ask

20

maybe the Police representative if they -- they have

21

input on that as far as time restrictions in the

22

parking lot.

23

is, but if you'd like to --

24
25

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

To my knowledge I don't believe there

If anybody knows the answer, can they

raise their hand?

Okay.

I have no objection to
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2
3

4

18

bringing Ms. Perreira down.
CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

No objection, I guess, Members.

Ms. Perreira, if you will.
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

I don't frequent that area very

5

often, so I can't remember the last time I parked

6

there.

7

MS. PERREIRA:

I was there last night.

I was looking for

8

parking too, so I can tell you directly.

9

no parking restrictions in that municipal parking

10

lot by Mana Foods.

11

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

12

MS. PERREIRA:

13

There is

Oh, okay.

Thank you.

A lot of people are parking in the you know

the Ikeda Building?

14

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

15

MS. PERREIRA:

Yeah.

They're using that for evening parking and

16

-- and they're using a lot of the off-street

17

sometimes private parking as well.

18

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

19

CHAIR MOLINA:

20

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

21

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you
Thank you, Chair.

Thank you.

Members, any other questions

22

for Mr. Coloma-Agaran at this time on this matter?

23

Seeing none --

24

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

25

CHAIR MOLINA:

Question.

Member Hokama?
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

I was kind of interested in a

2

comment made earlier regarding impedious work oder

3

to Public Works to change the -- the configuration

4

of parking on Baldwin.

5

authorizes MPD to initiate the work order?

6

county engineer in your department, Mr. Director, by

7

council in the code has been granted the authority

8

to make those decisions but not any other

9

department.

10

CHAIR MOLINA:

11

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

So what part of the code
The

So can you give us some comment?

Mr. Director?
Thank you, Mr. Chair.

In response to

12

your question, I do need to go back and check on

13

this because I know this

14

while ago.

15

generally every agency basically does make work

16

request to our department.

17

something that we are authorized to do, we will go

18

ahead and do it.

19

this incident happened a

My understanding is that -- well, first,

And if the work is

I believe in this area, unless -- I need to

20

go back and check, but the parking is supposed to be

21

parallel in this area, but over time people had sort

22

of created diagonal parking.

23

really to -- and the way we looked at it was, well,

24

we're going to go ahead and correct the parking to

25

be what it's supposed to be and that's what we did.

So the request is
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And I need to go back and check that.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Chair, you will put in a request so

3

that Mr. -- Mr. Director can respond to that

4

request?

5

CHAIR MOLINA:

So noted.

Mr. Director, on a follow-up to

6

that -- this issue.

Well, first of all, I want to

7

ask Corporation Counsel, are we within the

8

parameters of our agenda item to discuss this work

9

order that was made by the Police Department as it

10

relates to our agenda item?

11

to discuss?

12

MS. YOUNG:

Is this germane for us

To the extent that it -- that the discussion

13

relates to time-restricted parking on Baldwin

14

Avenue, I don't have enough information to -- you

15

know, to make a comment on that.

16

it's related to that item it would be

17

question is whether or not it would be a Sunshine

18

Law violation to -- to discuss that information, and

19

that would be limited -- that would be determined by

20

whether or not it related to the limited

21

time-restricted parking on Baldwin Avenue.

22

CHAIR MOLINA:

But as long as
I guess the

So can we go ahead and discuss this or

23

would you -- or are you recommending that we refrain

24

from getting into issues about the David Spees

25

Building parking?
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MS. YOUNG:

21

That building, is that also on -- that's also

on Baldwin Avenue, correct?

3

CHAIR MOLINA:

I believe that is correct.

4

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

5

MS. YOUNG:

Right across the street.

Across the street.

In that case I believe it

6

would be -- it would be okay, you know, it would not

7

be a violation of the Sunshine Law to discuss that

8

related area.

9
10
11

CHAIR MOLINA:

Thank you.

Member Kane, you had a

question?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Oh, no, Mr. Chair, I was just going

12

to suggest because it was brought up in testimony

13

that issue regarding the Spees Building, and I think

14

Member Hokama's simply making a request to get a

15

response in writing.

16

I would, I guess, suggest us be cautioned of is that

17

this discussion is about time restriction, not --

18

not configuration of -- of -- of parking.

19

And the only thing I would

But because it was brought up in testimony I

20

think, you know, what Member Hokama requested is

21

it's fine because it just follows up on what was

22

testified, you know, before us, and getting a

23

written response can -- we can later, you know, have

24

a future discussion to the response that is given by

25

the -- the Director.
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CHAIR MOLINA:

So noted.

Thank you.

Members, any other

2

questions or comments for the Director or

3

Corporation Counsel?

4

Okay.

At this point, Members, your Chair's

5

recommendation is I would like to continue to keep

6

this item open.

7

department is that if they could get someone from

8

the department to talk to the private landowners

9

within the area to get feedback from them as well,

I would like to suggest to the

10

to get additional feedback from -- I know Mr.

11

Parsons did from the Mayor's Office got feedback

12

from, I guess, the Merchants Association.

13

don't know if the Paia-Main Street Association has

14

time to discuss this matter at this time.

15

understanding is that we are still awaiting the bill

16

from Public Works, so that's still, I guess, in the

17

process of being put together.

18

I -- I

And my

So taking into consideration all those

19

matters, I would prefer that we defer this matter.

20

And until we get this additional information and

21

additional feedback from the community, then I would

22

like to go ahead and proceed -- well, whenever this

23

matter is taken up in the next term.

24

it's more appropriate we get as much feedback on

25

this before we proceed.

And I think
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23

We have Member Kane to be followed by Member
Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you, Chair.

If deferral is

4

going to occur, then may I ask since we do have

5

representation from or -- or representation from the

6

Paia Community Association and folks involved in the

7

community, if they could perhaps consider in their

8

next community meeting, take this up as an agenda

9

item and

and kind of fully discuss the -- the

10

prospect of having timed parking all the way up to

11

what we're discussing today up on the upper portion

12

of Baldwin and also even maybe discussing the time.

13

We're -- we're used to seeing in most other parts of

14

-- of the island anyway that have restricted parking

15

and especially in small towns.

16

for Makawao town because I'm not sure off the top of

17

my head, but with Wailuku we've got two and even

18

some -- at some points three hour time frames.

19

Now I can't speak

And so maybe that's something that also could

20

be discussed within their community meetings, and

21

then hopefully they can provide some sort of

22

recommendation for this body so the next time that

23

we have something before us, that we can get maybe a

24

better feel of what the Merchants Association or the

25

community association with Paia's Main street
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Association can provide feedback to this community.
Personally, Chair, I -- I think it would be

3

wise for us to get that feedback and then having it

4

consistent all the way up and down and even having

5

them provide us with some specific recommendations.

6

I know Ms. Perreira or, excuse me, I believe, it may

7

have been Ms. Perreira, I apologize not remembering

8

who it was, stated that it's -- the upper portion is

9

more of the professional district, if you will,

10

versus a merchant-type district where you have

11

retail sales.

12

it look like a hula implement store there.

13

But I know that there's a hula store,

Anyway, just getting the feedback to see if

14

an hour is too short because we're trying to promote

15

the walking component of Paia town or extending it

16

out to maybe an hour and a half or even two hours

17

because that way people can walk and visit multiple

18

stores and -- and still not feel like they got to

19

rush back out and -- and move their car, at the same

20

time preventing people from parking all day.

21

Now we also got information both from Ms.

22

Cochran in her letter stating it seems though it's

23

-- it's employees, but we also got comments from

24

public testimony that it's people who rent above who

25

are being told to use the overflow down on the road
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1

since there's no limitation.

2

multiple component there that needs to be, I think,

3

further discussed.

4

consider looking at some additional private parking

5

somewhere else or off -- off-street parking,

6

hopefully they can provide us with some

7

recommendations from the merchants as well as the

8

people that are directly impacted in -- on Baldwin

9

Avenue and Paia town.

10
11
12
13

So there's kind of a

And if in the end we have to

And those are my comments, Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you, Member Kane.

Member

Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Yeah, just -- just one

14

comment.

15

regarding enforcement.

16

testifiers that -- or three, three of them talked

17

about enforcement.

18

one-hour parking and, you know, how often do we do

19

it or we don't do it at all?

20

CHAIR MOLINA:

21

MR. AOKI:

Maybe a question for the Police Department
I know there were two -- two

Did we ever enforce the

Sergeant Aoki, if you will.

Good morning.

Sergeant Aoki with the Police

22

Department.

Previously I know we used to assign

23

Officer Taguma on certain maybe once a week or once

24

every other week or so to go to Paia to do the

25

traffic enforcement, but currently we don't have
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1

anybody full-time assigned to do it.

2

changeover in administration in the Wailuku

3

district, Officer Taguma hasn't been sent or

4

requested to have been sent to Paia for any

5

enforcement in the last year or so.

6

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

And since some

So when he was doing the

7

enforcement in Paia, was there any concerns in

8

regards to, you know, people parking there more than

9

an hour, any comments from the -- the businesses

10
11

fronting those signs?
MR. AOKI:

I don't know.

I would have to ask him.

On

12

Baldwin Avenue, it's -- some areas are one-hour

13

parking and on Hana Highway it's two hours, so

14

there's a difference in one hour.

15

Councilmember Kane brought up, most jurisdictions

16

they have a certain time period when the parking

17

time restrictions apply and Paia doesn't have it

18

except for the 2:00 a.m. till, was it, 5:00 a.m. for

19

on-street parking.

20

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

But like

I -- I don't know if you know

21

this next question, but, you know, according to

22

Mr. Vicens the parking as you enter Paia town is,

23

you know, most of the time is half or three-quarter

24

full.

25

why people not parking there more often.

If you know or if you could answer, you know,
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MR. AOKI:

I could just speculate.

It's right at the --

is that the one off of Hana Highway?

3

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

4

MR. AOKI:

Yeah.

It's away from most of the businesses.

It's

5

not really watched.

We've had car break-ins.

6

There's no shade.

7

have to walk all the way to the other end of Paia,

8

then walk back to your car.

9

the reasons why it's not fully utilized.

And if you start on one end, you

That could be some of
And

10

there's also another small parking lot up on Baldwin

11

Avenue and that's

12

used a lot.

13

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

I think that parking lot is

They have no problems as far as

14

security problems for that parking lot, the one

15

that's located, I guess, right off Baldwin Avenue?

16

MR. AOKI:

Not until the sun goes down.

Once the sun

17

sets, then we have problems in both parking lots.

18

And the one off of Hana Highway is not used much at

19

night.

20

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

21

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you, Member Pontanilla.

22

Committee Members, any other questions for Sergeant

23

Aoki from the Police Department?

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:
Sergeant.

Thank you, Chair.

Member Kane?
Good morning,

Thank you for being here.

Is it possible
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1

or are the resources available to consider having

2

kind of the -- the spot rotation where Paia and

3

Wailuku wouldn't know when Officer Taguma, as an

4

example, would be able to once or even twice a week

5

be able to provide some enforcement for on-street

6

parking, not only in Wailuku but out to Paia, and is

7

that something that's realistically achievable?

8
9

10
11

MR. AOKI:

Yes, its been done in the past.

Nothing on a

regular basis in Paia, but its been done in the
past.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Is

is that something that -- and

12

-- and Mr. Chair, I'm trying to keep it as tight to

13

the -- the restriction.

14

component that was brought up in -- in discussion.

15

Is that something that the Chief and -- and

It's just the enforcement

16

through the Police Department you folks would

17

reconsider or reinstitute just to

18

of the issues that -- that face Paia town without

19

having any enforcement if we can do some, you know,

20

once just shows up next week and then the following

21

maybe he shows up two times, then the next time he

22

doesn't show up, then the next time he shows up

23

another time, and that way kind of keep 'em

24

off

25

MR. AOKI:

to take on some

Off balance?
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

-- keep -- yeah, and that way the

2

people, again like was said earlier, just keeping

3

them honest.

4

at the same time not doing a full commitment of

5

resource, you know, solely for Paia because I know

6

we're -- we're strained, you know, with -- with

7

with resources.

8

possible that we could consider reinstituting or is

9

that something that the Chief would prefer us having

That's all it is.

And -- and -- but

So is that something that's

10

a written, I mean, if the body agrees for them to

11

consider reinstituting?

12

MR. AOKI:

I'm sure the Chief will be open to that request

13

and I'm sure we could be able to accommodate it.

14

The only thing is if we take -- we'll probably use

15

Officer Taguma, and in the days that he goes to Paia

16

there's not going to be anybody in Wailuku.

17

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

18

Chair.

19

to be a whole day commitment or could we -- because

20

I know Officer Taguma is consumed with traffic for

21

Yeah.

And -- and just a final,

When we do something like that would it need

for Wailuku Elementary in the morning as well as

22

in the afternoon.

And people kind of figured it

23

out, yeah, in the afternoon, they can park up there

24

certain time and be able to exceed their time limit

25

in the later afternoon part.
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1

MR. AOKI:

Yes.

2

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

And -- but because of that, in Paia

3

town if he's able to go out say after -- just a

4

hypothetical, he goes out after doing Wailuku in the

5

morning and then he -- after pau over here, then he

6

just goes out in the afternoon and does like an

7

afternoon shift of -- of enforcement, is that

8

something that's possible?

9

MR. AOKI:

Well, his shift --

10

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

11

MR. AOKI:

Another half day, in other words.

It's possible after his morning post up here in

12

-- yeah, he -- he will be able to go out and then

13

come back, you know, before the -- the school gets

14

out and redo the post in the afternoon.

15

that's what we've done before in the past.

16

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

17

MR. AOKI:

Thank you.

That

Thank you, Sergeant.

What would help also would be a -- if -- if

18

there's input as far as when the most violations

19

having, you know, to occur, then that way some days

20

instead of committing him all day to Paia, he could

21

be half day in Paia and the other half back in

22

Wailuku.

23

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you for your comments.

And

24

Chair, if I -- if I may, given those comments

25

hopefully the Paia merchants and the Paia Main
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1

street Group in that discussion that I hope they

2

consider having, that they can incorporate what was

3

just said by Sergeant Aoki so that they -- they can

4

give feedback -- get feedback directly from the

5

merchants as to when they're seeing.

6

And unfortunately, it's like the fox watching

7

the hen out because sometimes it's the employees who

8

doing the, you know, parking, which is the same

9

issue that we deal with in Wailuku.

A lot of times

10

it's employees using the same parking and then

11

playing -- playing cat and mouse with Officer

12

Taguma.

13

thanks.

14

CHAIR MOLINA:

But thanks, thanks for your comments,

Thank you, Member Kane, you bring up some

15

good points there.

16

with the Merchants Association and the Police is

17

critical to determine when, I guess, the peak hours

18

of all of these so-called violations are occurring.

19

Members, any other comments or questions for

20
21

And I believe the networking

the Police?
If I could ask Sergeant Aoki one thing.

Just

22

for clarification, you mentioned that since the

23

change in administration it was, I guess, decided

24

not to send Officer Taguma out to Paia.

25

why, why that, I guess, policy was instituted or it

Do you know
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1

was -- or the decision was made not to have, I

2

guess, Paia regulated on a spot basis?

3

MR. AOKI:

Prior to that they had a community police

4

officer, and then once he retired we had that

5

workload shifted to the other community police

6

officers so.

7

patrol district of Wailuku and Officer Taguma came

8

under my supervision, and we would initiate that

9

once a week or once every other week or so.

But a couple of years ago I was in the

But as

10

far as for now, I don't know why they stopped doing

11

it.

12

said he's willing to go out and do it.

13

somebody's got to tell him to do it.

14
15

Because I've talked to Officer Taguma and he

CHAIR MOLINA:

It's just

Thank you, and that will be very helpful to

the body.

Thank you, Sergeant.

Committee Members, any other comments or

16

17

request or input from our Police Department or any

18

of our other resources?

19

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

20

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Member Kane?

No objection to deferral, Chair.
Members, any objections to deferral?

with the comments I made earlier, I'll

21

And I

22

again seek more additional input on the matter and

23

in addition to what has been told to us by the

24

Police Department, and we'll go ahead and get the

25

letters out that you have requested.

And if you
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have any other recommendations or comments for the

2

committee, we'll make sure that our committee staff

3

gets it and brings it forward when this matter is

4

addressed in the probably, more likely, probability

5

the next term.
So with that being said, this matter will be

6

7

deferred.

8

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

9

CHAIR MOLINA:

10

ACTION:

11

ITEM NO. 32:

No objections.

Thank you very much, Members.
DEFER.
WORK EXEMPT FROM PERMIT (TEMPORARY TENTS)
(C.C. 04-68)

12
13

CHAIR MOLINA:

Next on our agenda is Item No. 32 having to

14

do with a work exempt from permits for temporary

15

tents.

16

bill referred by Councilmember Mateo, and that would

17

exempt from building permit requirements the

18

installation of temporary tents for events sponsored

19

by nonprofit organizations and events on County

20

property that do not exceed 72 hours.

21

family parties, camping and tents that are removed

22

by 6:00 p.m. on the same day of installation are

23

exempted from obtaining building permits.

24

first discussed this matter at its meeting of March

25

22nd on the island of Molokai.

The Committee is in receipt of a proposed

currently
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Members, I would like to ask you to take a

1

2

look at the revisions to the proposed bill that the

3

Corporation Counsel made as requested at our last

4

meeting on this matter.

5

we'll go ahead and open up first with comments from

6

the Director of Public Works and Waste Management

7

and then to be followed by comments from our

8

Corporation Counsel.

9

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

So at this time, I guess

Mr. Coloma-Agaran?

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

I believe the

10

council did ask our department to work with some of

11

the other agencies who reviewed building permits to

12

look at ways to expedite the review and approval of

13

all applications.

14

but we do point out that we don't control the review

15

time within those other agencies.

16

to be something that the directors in those agencies

17

need to have their people set some priorities and

18

look at -- look at the reviews that they do.

19

We did make contact with them,

So part of it has

I would say that for a couple of the

20

agencies, they're always on time as far as the

21

amount of time we ask them to spend on reviews.

22

Fire Department will always get the reviews done on

23

time.

24
25

The

The other request was to have I think it was
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1

they would still want to be able to take a look at

2

and we did get a response from the Fire Department.

3

It appears that a single temporary tent with a

4

covering that's less than 400 square feet that will

5

not be used for food or beverage distribution is not

6

a problem.

7

At the last committee meeting a

8

representative of the Health Department suggested to

9

the Council that they didn't feel the need to have

10

to review these permits at all.

11

this means that they -- they changed their minds,

12

although regardless of whether they're in the

13

building permit process, someone that's going to be

14

serving food and beverage would probably need to get

15

a health permit anyway.

16

I don't know if

In our -- and as far as the proposed bill

17

that was transmitted to you on July 26, in our

18

previous letter we did suggest that temporary tents

19

that are erected on county property should be

20

exempted from having to obtain a building permit.

21

This suggestion was incorporated into the revised

22

bill, but the exempt -- exemption is limited to a

23

72-hour period.

24

jurisdiction over the County property will be

25

responsible for monitoring the temporary tents, we

Since the department that has
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don't believe the 72-hour limitation is necessary.
For example, the Department of Parks and

2
3

Recreation already has its own permitting

4

procedure.

5

the time in the bill can be flexible and they can

6

decide whether 72 hours is appropriate or -- or

7

something longer that their own rules or their

8

ordinances may already set out.

9

be -- you'd be looking at 72 across the board when

That can be substituted for ours so that

otherwise, they'd

10

they already allow someone to have a tent up for

11

more than 72 hours.

12

example, of course, is the Maui County Fair where I

13

believe the tents are erected for at least four or

14

five days.

I would suggest that an

And I believe in the audience we do have

15
16

Deputy Parks Director as well as personnel from Fire

17

and the Planning Department.

18

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you, Mr. Director, and thank

19

you for reading my mind.

I was about just to

20

announce them.

21

have Lieutenant English, from the Planning

22

Department, we have Mr. Cerizo and Mr. Yoshida, and

23

we have Mr. Buck from the Parks Department as

24

additional resources to any questions that you may

25

have.

We have from the Fire Department, we
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Prior to taking anymore questions, I'd like

1

2

to ask the Corporation Counsel Ms. Young to give her

3

comments on the -- on the revised bill.

4

is, I presume, on the revised bill that's the

5

October 28th, 2004 cover sheet.

6

MS. YOUNG:

7

CHAIR MOLINA:

And this

We have no comments.
Okay.

Thank you.

Okay, Committee Members,

8

questions for either the Director or Ms. Young or

9

any request to have our resource personnel here to

10
11

respond to your questions?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Member Hokama?

For -- for Director Agaran.

You

12

mentioned the County Fair.

13

covered tent whether it'd be the sitting area for

14

the eating areas and what not, at this point those

15

big tent structures require a building permit?

16

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

17

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

So like that very large

That's right.
Okay.

Those little booths that is

18

like the -- for the rides or -- or what not, they

19

also currently require -- they have a blanket

20

building permit or they have one for -- are you

21

aware of how it's approached, Mr. Director?

22

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

I would need to go back to find out

23

whether we have a separate building permit or one

24

for the entire fair.

25

they're probably separate building permits.

I -- I -- I would guess that
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1

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

2

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

3

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Okay, okay.
John would know.
Part of the proposal is to give

4

exemptions and I've read your comments about or

5

should it make a difference between for-profit,

6

nonprofit and what not.

7

and when the unfortunate happens, we more than

8

likely will be the ones that will end up in court

9

with a claim against the County.

My concern is more on if

Is there language

10

or concerns you want to bring up to minimize that

11

area of liability?

12

or Corporation Counsel would give comment to that.

13

CHAIR MOLINA:

14

MS. YOUNG:

Okay.

I don't know if the Department

Ms. Young, if you will.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

This Committee

15

brought up a couple of different scenarios, one

16

being exempting temporary tents for nonprofit events

17

on any type of property and another scenario being

18

exempting temporary tents on County property.

19

Exempting temporary tents for nonprofit

20

events primarily would -- you know, I think that

21

would be basically a discretionary policy decision

22

that would be protected by -- it would be an immune

23

decision because it's a discretionary function.

24

to the extent that it's not -- that the incident

25

does not occur on our property would -- would also
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1

-- you know, the fact that it occurred on private

2

property, it would be basically a -- a private

3

matter between the

4

basically the nonprofit, and the injured party, the

5

plaintiff.

6

the owner of the tent, the

Where it's -- where the incident occurs on

7

our property, generally the County in operating our

8

parks has a duty of care, of reasonable care, to

9

maintain and supervise the use of our parks.

So as

10

long as we met that duty of reasonable care, we

11

would not be liable.

12

encompass

13

analysis.

14

is just in very general terms, we would be obligated

15

to take care of very obvious -- very obvious safety

16

concerns.

17

Now what exactly that

that entails, that's a case-by-case
I

I would think at a minimum, and this

An unsecured tent, for example, if it's very

18

obviously unsecured, it's flapping around, that, I

19

-- I believe, because it's occurring on our

20

property, we need to take care of.

21

either take care of it ourselves or work with the

22

owner of that tent to make sure that it's not a

23

hazard for a long amount of time.

24

very -- a very general analysis of

25

concerns.

We need to

So that's just
of liability
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1

CHAIR MOLINA:

Mr. Hokama?

2

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Well, I'm -- I'm strained to

3

condense the Counselor's comments in my mind.

I'm

4

just concerned about -- and I think Fire at one

5

point made a comment about a minimum size of tents,

6

yeah.

7

blown over at our Aquatic Center in Kihei.

8

about jumping things that have blown into the ocean

9

at beach -- our beach parks because of unanticipated

But we've dealt with coverings that have
We know

10

weather conditions.

11

our responsibility and liability by allowing these

12

things, should we allow these things.

13

MS. YOUNG:

So I just want to know what is

And to clarify your question, is that when

14

these tents are on our property, on the County's

15

property?

16

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

17

MS. YOUNG:

18

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

19

property.

20

MS. YOUNG:

Yeah.

Yeah.

Okay.

I'm concerned about private

In -- in this -- in the instance where

21

a temporary tent is erected on our property,

22

basically it comes down to that it would be a

23

greater obligation on the Parks Department if there

24

is no building permit requirement because the

25

building permit right now is -- is the County's
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1

review of the safety of -- of the proposed -- of the

2

tent.

3

from the code, basically now you have the department

4

that has to look at whether or not this tent is

5

safe.

6

If that is not -- if -- if that is exempted

And if -- and if, you know, if -- if at least

7

there's -- if there's obvious -- obviously unsafe,

8

open and dangerous situations out there, yes, I -- I

9

believe that the County could be held responsible

10
11

for that situation.

We do have a duty to supervise

a duty of care to supervise our -- our property

12

in a reasonable manner.

13

we're the insurers of safety, we're not, but we do

14

have that duty of reasonable care.

15

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

That's not to say that

And again, if it's not a building

16

permit, should there still be some type of review to

17

-- you know, because even on the permits, once it

18

becomes for public use we hold it to a different

19

standard compared to private property and homeowners

20

use only, you know.

21

So my concern with this proposal is on the

22

public use and what safeguards do we do to insure

23

that safety while still allowing these organizations

24

to perform their events.

25

have so much new permits and -- and -- and checklist

I mean, you know, now we
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1

that the Department of Planning has and Public Work

2

has and they've implemented that for various

3

reasons.

4

MS. YOUNG:

From purely a public safety perspective, that

5

would be dependent on -- on the Parks Department and

6

-- and their -- you know, whether or not they, you

7

know, look.

8
9

10
11
12
13

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Let me make it simpler for you.

Does Corporation Counsel have a liability concern
with this proposal?
MS. YOUNG:

No, we believe that this is -- basically comes

down to a policy decision.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

I also --

Answer the question.

Does

14

corporation Counsel have a concern of liability with

15

this proposal if it passes the way it is written at

16

this time?

17

MS. YOUNG:

No.

18

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

19

MS. YOUNG:

Okay.

Let me just add also that my understanding is

20

that the Parks Department also requires a liability

21

insurance for some of these major activities, so

22

that would also address your concern about

23

liability.

24

public safety perspective because that is a slight

25

-- that is a different issue than merely liability,

But I'm also trying to address it from a
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1

so I kind of wanted to address your question in

2

in two -- in two parts.

3

insurance that would cover -- cover the County.

But there is also that

Now whether the amount is enough, you never

4
5

know.

6

required by the County so at least we have some

7

coverage.

8

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

9

CHAIR MOLINA:

10

There's a -- there is an amount that's

One question just to follow up.

Proceed, Mr. Hokama.

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

You've now made me wonder whether

11

or not the -- the amount we're asking for for

12

liability insurance is sufficient by -- by your last

13

statement.

14

entities to ante a minimum $2 million liability

15

insurance, and the normal has been 1 million for

16

decades.

17

upping that liability number on the insurance?

18

MS. YOUNG:

And we are well aware that we ask other

So are you telling us we need to consider

No, I'm not -- I'm not suggesting that you
What my comment is -- is

19

increase that amount.

20

addressing is that that amount is a set amount.

21

not saying that that amount is going to cover every

22

single instance of liability that the County may

23

face in all kinds of different situations not just

24

temporary tents.

25

amount looking at what amount is reasonable and what

I'm

However, the County has set this
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1

amount is prudent under the circumstances.

2

saying that that amount given a particular situation

3

may not be enough.

4

the situation we have.

5

saying.

6

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

7

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

I'm just

It depends on -- on the -- on
That's

that's all I'm

Thank you, Chairman.
Thank you, Member Hokama.

Prior to

8

continuing our line of questioning, we have

9

councilmember Mateo in our proceedings today.

10

Mr. Mateo, do you have any as the introducer

11

of this County communication, do you have any

12

comments or any questions for the --

13

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Thank -- thank you, Mr. Chairman.

14

Yes, and -- and I'd like to request if it's okay

15

with the Chair and the body to have the Parks,

16

Mr. Buck, come down and provide additional clarity

17

on some of the concerns that Mr. Hokama has been

18

asking as well as sharing with us what -- what their

19

process is in assuring safe events in our parks and

20

his comments on this particular ordinance.

21

CHAIR MOLINA:

22

will.

23

left.

24
25

MR. BUCK:

Thank you, Mr. Mateo.

Mr. Buck, if you

You can have a seat over here towards my

Good morning, Council Members, Council Chair,

Committee Chair Mike Molina.

And first of all, I'd
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1

like to say congratulations on everybody's

2

reelection.
I have several comments and -- and I think --

3

4

and I understand the purpose of Mr. Mateo's

5

introduction to -- for this bill.

6

Mr. Hokama brought up several instances and -- and,

7

yeah, we -- we're aware of it, we are concerned

8

about it.

9

that was one of those unfortunate incidents that did

First of all,

The incident at Kihei Aquatic Center,

10

happen.

11

do as best we could to have those tents

12

actually were tied down with I-bolts or leg screws

13

which were actually drilled into the deck, so we did

14

try to do as much to address the safety.

15

our department's safety is one of the main issues.

16

We hate to see a good event turn bad.

17

We did take precautions as far as trying to
they

And then

Mr. Hokama asked about bouncing castles which

18

take place with a lot of private parties, and our

19

department right now is really thinking about

20

addressing this and maybe doing a prohibition on

21

this because we've had two accidents alone in Kihei

22

in regards to castles taking off, not being properly

23

strapped down or whatever incident, you know, a

24

freak wind or whatever.

25

concerned about that.

So we are taking --
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I believe the purpose of the bill that

2

Mr. Mateo has introduced was there's some concerns

3

about when a nonprofit organization applies a permit

4

with the Parks Department to do a fund-raiser, and,

5

you know, a lot of the nonprofits because of funding

6

keeps getting less and less every year.

7

to be more ingenious as far as raising funds to

8

offset their grant requirements or whatever for

9

their operations.

They have

Our department's main concern is

10

before we okay the permit that's issued to us

11

besides requiring certain things is to be sure that

12

the requirements of all other departments are met.

13

The building permit is not our requirement.

14

It -- it is a requirement that from my understanding

15

has been passed on to us.

16

Department and I think Department of Public Works

17

and -- and Environmental Management.

18

requirement that we ask the organizations for these

19

permits.

20

meet with the Fire Department.

21

to be sure they meet with the Health Department if

22

they're going to sell food.

23

be sure they meet with the Police Department to

24

address all concerns.

25

departments' requirements.

It is from the Planning

It's their

It's also our duty to be sure that they
It's also our duty

It's also our duty to

Those are all the
And our -- our chief,
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1

main concern is to be sure that these requirements

2

are met.

3

Now as far as a small tent that's being put

4

up for information purposes at a fund-raiser,

5

sometimes a lot of people like to go on like a

6

Friday evening put up their tent so Saturday morning

7

they can finish up, set out their tables,

8

information or set up their food booths or

9

entertainment, and usually they tear down that night

10

or Sunday morning.

Because of that it makes it a

11

lot easier for them because a lot of times now

12

there's not a lot of volunteers in these nonprofit

13

groups that are trying to raise money.

14

required by

15

it's more than taking up and taking down.

They are

to have a building permit because

As far as the department taking the

16
17

responsibility as far as are we going to address the

18

safety issues if they are not required to have a

19

building permit, we -- we usually meet with the

20

various organizations who do apply for special

21

events.

22

Mr. Mateo's concern is, they put on an event every

23

year in Molokai.

24

the same event, and every year they put up the same

25

tent and every year they have to get a building

Most of the events, and this is where

The same group every year puts on
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2

permit.

They've always had a safe event.
So that's where the concern is if -- well,

3

it's for this introduction of this bill is to

4

address some of these nonprofit groups who work

5

closely with the County, who actually ask the County

6

at times for money for grants -- for fund-raisers to

7

be exempt for having a -- a building permit.

8

department is not going to say, oh, they don't

9

require a building permit, you know, we're going to

Our

10

close our eyes.

11

tents are put up safely and that's what our

12

that's where our staff comes in.

13

require nonprofit groups who are doing fund-raising,

14

for-profit groups, County Fair, you know, a lot of

15

these groups they have insurance.

16

We're going to be sure that their

And also, we do

That brings me back to private parties and

17

bouncing castles when some of them -- say, community

18

center for a baby party puts up a bouncing castle.

19

Because the way the permitting process is, we don't

20

require them to have insurance.

21

we've had, you know, like two accidents already.

22

So, you know, there is a concern, are we going to

23

require now that if you're going to have a baby

24

party, you want a bouncing castle, we want to see

25

your insurance policy.

And that's where

I don't think that's going
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to be too popular.
Any other questions?

2

3
4

CHAIR MOLINA:

Thank you, Mr. Buck.

Committee Member --

I'm sorry, Councilmember Mateo?

5

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

I'll -- I'll yield, thank you.

6

CHAIR MOLINA:

Committee Members, questions for

Okay.

7

either Mr. Buck, Mr. Coloma-Agaran or Corporation

8

Counsel?

9

Member Kane?

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Can someone describe to me -- the

10

intent of this seems to be driven by the paperwork

11

or -- or just having to go through that process of

12

getting a permit.

13

say do we exempt people from going through the

14

process or do we look at the process and see if the

15

process is not as effective as it could be.

16

somebody share comment as to what steps have been

17

taken to look at the process itself instead of

18

what's before us?

So we look at that process and we

Can

19

And I'm not

20

member doesn't get

21

misunderstand my question, I'm trying to understand

22

from a different perspective have we looked at the

23

process and said something's wrong with the process,

24

does it need to be refined instead of, you know

25

what, the process is long, it's drawn out,

so Member Mateo or any other
you know, doesn't
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paperwork, blah, blah, blah, blah, blah, we want to

2

be exempted from that because it's just hard on us

3

to

to be able to go through that.
And so can somebody describe the process to

4
5

us, and other than what Mr. Buck said what we're

6

asking for the exemption would exempt exactly what,

7

all the other ones that you listed that you folks

8

are -- you have a duty to gather, Health Department,

9

Fire Department, Police Department, Liquor

10

Department, if they're involved, who else?
Specifically it's just the building permit;

11

12

and if it's just the building permit, then what

13

problem does the building permit pose to the

14

applicants that creates their attitude that this is

15

too onerous, this is too difficult, this is too

16

time-consuming?

17

Mr. Mateo, if he's, you know, able to respond to

18

that.

19

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

20

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

21

CHAIR MOLINA:

22

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

And maybe the question should go to

Thank you, Member Kane.
Chairman?

Mr. Mateo?
Chairman, thank you.

Just to

23

provide perhaps a rationale as to how we got from

24

point A to this current position, part of the

25

request was that on our island, on Molokai, all of
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1

our -- all of our County park facilities are not

2

only, you know, County parks, it's -- it also exists

3

in an SMA area.

4

requirement of dealing with SMA requirements, we had

5

tried to come up with an -- well, a means of trying

6

to alleviate the permitting processes and the

7

required paperworks to not only deal with the permit

8

processes but dealing with the SMA requirements as

9

well because it is -- it is cumbersome.

10

And because of that major

And as Mr. Buck referenced, these are annual

11

groups and organizations that have asked us for

12

for assistance in dealing -- dealing with these

13

difficulties.

14

process can become expensive as well.

15

The process is not only long, the

I believe in our last meeting, this

16

particular Committee meeting on July 8th in

17

having Planning's comments on the ordinance, it was

18

indicated that Planning is in fact looking at ways

19

of trying to streamline the process.

20

the department -- that department is able at this

21

time to kind of give us additional insight as to

22

what that so-called streamlining is.

23

in

And I believe

I think it's a general understanding that the

24

permitting process is lengthy.

The packet that must

25

be completed and filled out and submitted to the
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1

County, you know, can become overwhelming, and

2

because of that we had kind of like took all of

3

these issues and these concerns and hence came up

4

with the recommended ordinance that is before us

5

today.

6

permitting -- the permit process, the building

7

permit process itself, another component that also

8

needs to be addressed is really the SMA needs as

9

well.

10

But in addition to dealing with the

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you, Mr. Mateo.

As a follow

11

up, I'd like to call the Planning Department, I

12

guess, to add further clarification regarding the

13

SMA procedures and the -- I guess, of streamlining

14

the process as well.

15

the Molokai Planning commission, they have allowed

16

for temporary tents and I guess exempted any SMA

17

process for these.

18

additional insight from Mr. Yoshida as well as

19

Mr. Boteilho where the Committee's concern.

20

MR. BOTEILHO:

My understanding is I guess

But I guess if I could get

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

Wayne Boteilho,

21

Deputy Planning Director.

First of all, I'd like to

22

state that the Planning Department is in support of

23

this bill for the reason that our policy is that we

24

do not believe that there should be this much red

25

tape on smaller projects that really they -- okay.
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1

For example, tents in a -- temporary tents in a

2

county area which is done year after year, we do not

3

feel that we should put the public through this kind

4

of red tape.

5

As far as the SMA process, there was a change

6

to the State law.

And basically it said that -- I

7

guess HRS section 205A-22, it says that we need to

8

check even the excluded uses, activities or

9

operations, even the excluded, we have to check them

10

if they have a, quote, cumulative impact or

11

significant -- significant environmental or

12

ecological effect on the special management area.

13

Now we -- we are researching this, but, you know, I

14

would -- I would suspect that the legislature did

15

not intend this law to apply to small projects.

16

was not intend -- it was intended to apply to big

17

projects I would say like a building or even if it's

18

a event, a large event.

19

It

For example, and I guess on Molokai, we had

20

to require a SMA assessment for a gentleman who

21

wanted to put in a handicapped ramp -- ramp on

22

business property right in town.

23

believe that the law was intended for this type --

24

type of activity nor the larger activities which

25

really might have a cumulative impact on -- on the

Again, we do not
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SMA area.
As far as what we're doing to streamline the

3

process, the first thing we did was to streamline

4

our application.

5

applicant, even if you're exempt and you have to be

6

assessed, the applicant would fill it out and it's

7

easier than it was in the past and we would take a

8

look at that.

9

small enough that -- that you don't

And basically it's -- the

And if -- if we feel that this was
you don't

10

need an SMA permit, then we would just basically not

11

put that much effort into -- into reviewing your

12

application.

13

checklist saying that, okay, well, we're not going

14

to go any further on this.

15

We'll immediately issue a -- really a

TWo, we are looking at -- at our SMA

16

boundaries.

17

state to look at areas where we can reduce the SMA

18

project -- boundaries or areas where we need to

19

increase them and then fill it again.

20

We have had secured funding from the

Yeah, we are researching the intent of the

21

state law.

One, we need to find out what is the

22

true intent of the legislature; and two, we're

23

looking to what

24

handling this.

25

we're getting is that Maui is too restricted.

how all the other counties
And preliminary information that
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1

just have too much red -- red tape.

2

-- I will conclude on that, Mr. Chair.

3

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you, Mr. Boteilho.

4

Mateo, any other questions?

5

Kane.

6

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

So -- so that

Okay.

Member

I see Member

Yeah, thank you, Chair, I asked the

7

question to Member Mateo in the first place.

So I'm

8

trying to stick to what the proposal is before us.

9

And I know the Deputy started talking about the SMA

10

component which was brought up and -- and he went

11

into a size parameter, bigger projects, yeah,

12

smaller projects, no.
So help me understand based on what's in

13

14

front of us where the discretion comes in on size or

15

more specifically where the parameters are set forth

16

and what denotes big and what denotes small as far

17

as temporary tents within the existing bill and more

18

specifically what is being asked to be amended.

19

MR. BOTEILHO:

Yeah.

Mr. Chair?

20

CHAIR MOLINA:

Mr. Boteilho?

21

MR. BOTEILHO:

Councilmember Kane, yeah, we're going to

22

have to research that.

Like I said, we're looking

23

at what -- how the other counties are handling that

24

and again what was the true, true intent of the

25

State law.

But again, I guess a rule of thumb in my
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1

own mind is that something that is temporary that is

2

on County land and that is done year after year

3

should be considered something that is small.

4

the other extreme, if you're building a building,

5

then that is big because it's permanent.

6

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

On

Well, you have big temporary

7

facilities and you have small temporary facilities.

8

So again, that's where you're confusing me when you

9

start getting into the parameters of size and where

10

it's being denoted in this amendment and I don't see

11

that.

12

for me.

13

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

14

MR. BOTEILHO:

Yeah, Mr. Chair, yes.

So I -- I'm just -- there's some blur there
And I'll move on, Chair.

Yeah, I am basically

15

responding on the -- to the request to the Planning

16

Department regarding SMA's.

17

need to do much more research on that.

18

research, but trying to determine what our policy is

19

including size.

20

yeah, we do -- we would not know very much about

21

that except how we process building permits.

22

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

And again, we -- we
Not only

As far as the building permit side,

Yeah, I -- I would hate to draw a

23

conclusion and I'm not drawing this conclusion and

24

my comments are not meant to be antagonistic or to

25

rile people up, but I would hate to have a support
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1

of a bill merely to reduce a workload in a -- in a

2

department that already has, you know, shortage of

3

resources.

4

And I -- I'm just saying that with all due

5

respect because in defense of red tape, Chair, red

6

tape is there to protect the public, i.e. the County

7

which represents the public, and limit the exposures

8

to the unfortunate or the -- the misfortunes of

9

of human activity in our society, yeah?

And if we

10

start giving away

11

this -- what's before us because I understand

12

there's a lot of merit to this, but we need to ask

13

the questions about does this in any way and I think

14

-- I don't -- and I won't put words in Member

15

Hokama's mouth, but my question comes back to the

16

liability.

17

integrity of protecting the public from itself;

18

does it soften up our overview of protecting the

19

County and the exposure that we will be -- you know,

20

that will be put out there.

21

and again, no disrespect to

By doing this, does it compromise the

And yes, I agree, year after year, same tent,

22

same tent.

But just like one airplane, up and down,

23

up and down, if we didn't check it out, got to -- we

24

got to maintain.

25

when one big wind come or do this or do that on

And you never know what can happen
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1

public property and there's no permitting process to

2

make sure, and just so happen they didn't check it

3

that time because I will note that Mr. Buck's

4

comments, he didn't use absolute terms, he says most

5

of the time.

6

words that showed that sometimes it's not looked at

7

as much as other times.
And those are the kind of things I'm -- I'm

8
9

You know, he -- he did -- he used

listening carefully and I want to be supportive, but

10

I want to make sure that I want to support it but

11

not at the expense of compromising the safety

12

issues.

13

exempting the building permit, then what is being

14

compromised in that action?

15

that's being compromised?

16

If there is, then say it; if there's not, then why

17

is it there in the first place then, just for the

18

sake of red tape?

19
20
21

CHAIR MOLINA:

So I need somebody to answer if we're

Is there something
And let's be frank about.

I'll have Mr. -- Mr. Coloma-Agaran to

respond to your question.
MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

Mr. Director?

Mr. Chair, generally, again, if you

22

look at the bill you'll note that this section talks

23

about exemptions from the building code.

24

have been over time both in the Uniform Building

25

Code as well as the changes that the County has
RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

So there

PWT 11/4/04

59

1

specifically made that as a policy matter its been

2

decided these don't need a building permit.

3

what you're being asked to do today and that's

4

really a policy decision for the Council.

That's

What -- what is going to happen here though

5
6

is it should be very clear to you is that, yes, a

7

building permit will not be required for the

8

proposal, but it doesn't mean that the other reviews

9

are not going to happen.

What we're saying is now

10

Parks will still implement their permitting

11

process.

12

Department of Health will still require a health

13

permit.

14

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

If they're going to be serving food,

If-Mr. Coloma-Agaran, let me -- I'll --

15

I'll stop you there just for the sake of, are you

16

stating that the building permit is redundant to

17

what

18

away this permit is there something that's not going

19

to be reviewed by the other agencies?

20

words, is there redundancy here; and if so, then

21

let's say there is and then let's look at it with

22

that in mind or

the other agencies review, or if you take

23

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

24

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

25

In other

We're not --- are we losing something here by

not having a particular component in an overall
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1

review process being removed, what are we missing

2

out on?

3

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

Well, you have -- what's going to be

4

removed is a review by my department on the building

5

code provisions that would apply to any structure

6

that is being erected.

7

code will still be there for the size structures

8

that the Fire -- that the Fire Department wants,

9

everything over 400 square feet.

The interest of the Fire

The Planning

10

Department will still need to comply with the

11

coastal Zone Management Act in looking at whether

12

this complies with SMA.

13

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

No, and I

I -- I understand that.

14

So I'm going to focus in on because your role is

15

being taken out and your role is to look at the

16

codes, so are you saying that that does -- that does

17

not compromise the integrity of a review process

18

that will protect the public, is that what you're

19

saying, that even with the removal of it we're okay,

20

there's not something there that we have to be aware

21

of.

22

Because in my mind, this is being driven by a

23

specific situation and then other people kind of

24

jumped on in saying, yeah, we can support that.

25

I -- I just heard that this is a law that's going to
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1

impact everybody, not just the Molokai annual event.

2

This is going to impact everybody else who's going

3

to fall within the qualification, which could be a

4

lot of different people without a review process of

5

building codes, and the requirements that you have

6

to overview are not going to be in place and does

7

that create some exposure to us.

8

9

10

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

You know, I

I think that's a

variation of the same question that Councilmember
Hokama --

11

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

12

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

It is.
asked earlier and really, again,

13

it's going to be a policy decision.

14

structures already and other kinds of work that as a

15

policy decision you've decided that there are other

16

structures that we should be a lot more careful

17

about in -- in going through the review process

18

under the building code.

19

that's added.

20

There are other

This would be another one

And remember, that you already allow

21

temporary tents for family events not to require

22

they're not required to get a building permit.

23

there are already other kinds of tents that don't go

24

through the process.

25

dealing with here is it's going to be on County

The difference that we're
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1

property.

2

be looking at the safety issues.

3

looking specifically at what we would look at as far

4

as a building code, but they

5

at the practical issues that have to deal with

6

erecting a tent.

7
8

9

There is another agency that is going to

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Okay.

They may not be

they will be looking

Thank you, Chair.

Thank you,

thank you for your responses.
CHAIR MOLINA:

Thank you, Member Kane.

The Chair has one

10

question for the Planning Department.

11

SMA process, well, as it relates to Molokai, my

12

understanding is the Molokai Planning commission,

13

they do have an exemption for temporary tents or any

14

type of temporary structure not having to go through

15

the SMA process.

16

that and then what -- what is the Planning

17

Department doing to, I guess, streamline the

18

process?

19

MR. YOSHIDA:

Regarding the

Can you, I guess, elaborate on

Thank you, Mr. Chair and Members of the

20

Committee.

The -- in the Molokai Planning

21

commission Rules that were amended in 1999, under

22

nonstructural improvements to existing commercial

23

structures which could be considered to be an exempt

24

action, that also means temporary structures for

25

special events not exceeding 14 consecutive days
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1

such as tents and booths.

2

they put up temporary structures for less than --

3

not exceeding 14 consecutive days, then that could

4

be considered to be an exemption under the Molokai

5

Planning Commission rules.

6

So if they had an event,

I guess my thoughts from July, the July

7

meeting, was potentially the department could work

8

to do more prescreening of these SMA assessment

9

applications.

We receive over 800 of these

10

annually.

11

for the 7th Annual Molokai Earth Day Event, we could

12

put it in a sort of a short list type of pile versus

13

if it's for some $2 million house on the shoreline,

14

immediately abutting the shoreline, then we could

15

put it in another pile.

16

applicant for the 7th Annual Molokai Earth Day Event

17

had the same site plan, same number of tents,

18

portable -- portable bathrooms and the like and we

19

have review it -- reviewed it before, then we could

20

issue an SMA exemption.

21

CHAIR MOLINA:

And if it's a repeat event, say this is

And if the person -- the

Mr. Yoshida, just as a follow-up now.

22

Being that you have this exemption, now the

23

applicant still would have to wait for the Planning

24

Director's approval.

25

concern is, you know, because the process is lengthy

So again, I know part of the
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1

and long, now even still they would have to wait for

2

the Planning Director to give approval on it as

3

well.

4

Am I correct?

MR. YOSHIDA:

Yes.

But I think one of the concerns raised

5

by the member of the public might have been the time

6

that it took, given the fact that it was a repeat

7

event, that the -- the time was not shortened

8

because there were -- they had the same site plan as

9

prior events.

10

They were kind of treated like a

brand new application.

11

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you.

Mr. Boteilho?

12

MR. BOTEILHO:

If I may, Mr. Chair.

Yeah, that's one

13

thing -- that's another thing that we're looking at

14

streamlining is now we have extra staff, we're

15

looking at having this triage system where the

16

longer-range projects or applications can -- can

17

take longer.

18

out, especially those that can get out in one day

19

including having the Director sign off on it.

20

you.

21

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

The shorter ones we like to get them

Thank you, Mr. Boteilho.

Thank

Members,

22

before I proceed with additional questions, the

23

Chair would like to call for a short recess.

24

shall reconvene at 10:40.

25

RECESS:

(Gavel.)

10:30 a.m.
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10:45 a.m.

1

RECONVENE:

2

CHAIR MOLINA:

(Gavel.)

Public Works and Traffic

3

Committee meeting for November 4th is now back in

4

session.

5

break.

6

questioning as it relates to Item No. 32.

7

Members, do you have questions for any of our

8

resource personnel?

9

from the Fire Department.

Thank you very much, Members, for that
At this point we're continuing our line of

10

Committee

We also have Lieutenant English

Lieutenant, do you have any comments that you

11

would like to make to the Committee at this time?

12

Not at this time?

13
14
15

Committee Member Tavares?
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

Yes, thank you.

I would really like

to ask the Fire Department some questions.

16

CHAIR MOLINA:

17

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

18

Thank you.

Okay.

Mr. English?
Can I have a question with

Ms. Tavares's agreement to

19

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

20

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

21

first --

22

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

23

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

24

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

25

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Oh, okay.
-- give Planning my question

Oh , fine.
-- Chair?
No problem.
All right.

Seeing no objection,
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Member Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Thank you.

I -- I listened to your

3

comments regarding the Molokai Planning commission

4

and that they made a rule revision to -- to take

5

into account Molokai's situation.

6

department -- can -- can the department tell us this

7

morning all three planning commissions of this

8

county have rules that differ regarding a same

9

subject?

10

MR. BOTEILHO:

11

MR. YOSHIDA:

Was the

Mr. chair, I'll yield to Mr. Yoshida.
Thank you, Councilmember Hokama, Members of

12

the Committee.

13

commission have the same rule regarding

14

nonstructural improvements and temporary structures.

15

The Lanai Planning commission has not amended its

16

rules to incorporate this revision.

17

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

The Maui and Molokai Planning

Okay.

And at this time we -- we --

18

state law does not require us to have one consistent

19

policy with all the commissions within the County?

20

I'm just -- I'm just asking.

21

answer that's why.

22

MR. YOSHIDA:

Well, we're

I don't know the

we're dealing with the same

23

statute, Chapter 205A, Hawaii Revised Statutes, but

24

it's in the -- I guess the flushing out of what is a

25

nonstructural -- what is defined as a nonstructural
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1

improvement, that each planning commission has the

2

-- a coastal zone management authority for its

3

jurisdiction can define what is a nonstructural

4

improvement.

5

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Okay.

For -- for the Planning

6

Department, I just need to understand how this 14

7

days came about.

8

previous applicants that you came up with 14 days or

9

two weeks, why not seven days, why not 21 days?

10

MR. YOSHIDA:

Was that the average use of your

I believe the Maui Planning Commission was

11

the first commission to amend its rules back in

12

1997.

13

not sure

14

significant rationale as to why 14 days, but that

15

was the -- we felt that two weeks was a significant

16

amount of time for a structure to be cited on the

17

property even if it was a temporary structure.

I just thought that 14 consecutive days, I'm

18

I don't remember what -- if there was a

So events such as Christmas tree sales --

19

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

20

MR. YOSHIDA:

21

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

22

MR. YOSHIDA:

Uh-huh.

-- Christmas tree tents -Good example, thank you.

-- yeah, for example, where the -- say the

23

sales period is say from the day after Thanksgiving

24

till Christmas Eve, which could be a four-week or

25

five-week period depending on when Thanksgiving is,
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1

when the fourth Thursday in November is, you know,

2

those would require SMA permits.

3

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

4

MR. YOSHIDA:

5

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

6

MR. YOSHIDA:

7

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

If they're in an SMA zone, right?

If -- yeah, that's correct.
If they're, they wouldn't

That's correct.
Okay.

I listened to the Deputy

8

about what the department believes was the real

9

intent or not the real intent of the State law.

So

10

has the department considered then asking a -- the

11

appropriate legislative branch of government to

12

either define it better or -- or to bring clarity to

13

this -- this area of what the department thinks the

14

law means although you cannot verify that that's

15

what is the law?

16

MR. BOTEILHO:

Mr. Chair.

17

CHAIR MOLINA:

Director.

18

MR. BOTEILHO:

No, not yet because what we like to do is

19

do the research, know as much as we can before we

20

come to the legislative body.

21

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Okay.

At this point does the

22

department through the commissions have the

23

authority to add additional categories?

24

listen well, you know, Mr. Kane brought up his

25

concern about big and small in response to the

Because I
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1

Planning Department's comments about big and small,

2

okay?

3

the SMA has a lot to do with dollar value,

4

especially the division between a minor and a

5

regular SMA permit.

6

line, right?

7

value of the project or the improvement.

8
9

And my understanding is big and small with

MR. BOTEILHO:

It's $150,000 is that

that

So part of the consideration is a

Councilmember Hokama and Members of the

Committee, if the proposed action is a development

10

and requires an SMA permit, then the dollar

11

threshold currently is $125,000.

12

$125,000 even if it was for a fancy storage shed, it

13

-- at -- at a hotel, it still needs an SMA major

14

permit.

15

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Okay.

If it exceeds

So I -- I'm just -- I'm just

16

asking, yeah, because I think the department could

17

consider in the -- in

18

interim, if we can

19

not create a SMA miscellaneous which would be

20

something like $15,000 below -- whatever is a

21

reasonable thing we got in those giant tents because

22

I think those tents run 10,000 more or less from

23

what we use on Lanai, and create a new category that

24

you could process quickly under a miscellaneous SMA

25

processing that can reduce the time it takes a SMA

in the meantime, the
we should use that word, why
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1

minor and allow the -- the events to -- to go on

2

with at least a reasonable level of review and

3

processing.

4

MR. BOTEILHO:

Yes, I would agree with that if we do

5

greater prescreening upfront of some of these 800

6

assessments and sort of weed out those that are, you

7

know, going to be exempt because they're repeat

8

events or the impacts would be relatively minor.

9

think that would help to facilitate the people such

10
11

I

as those who complain initially about the process.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Okay.

And -- and I'm more

12

concerned about -- okay, I understand Mr. Mateo has

13

a great interest in this.

14

process unless they're going to walk -- if they want

15

to walk it through need to come to Wailuku, okay?

16

So Lanai, I can tell you now, there is nobody that

17

you can steal on Lanai that can take care of that

18

permit quickly or -- or with reasonable interface

19

exchange unless you come to Maui, okay?

20

would assume is -- is the same situation.

21

no person you can deal with to either help you on

22

site at the County's facilities unless you come to

23

Maui.

24
25

The rural areas to

Molokai I
There's

So I -- I'm just trying to find a way -- is
there a way through existing departments on our two
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1

islands, Mr. Mateo's island, Molokai, and Lanai, for

2

my community, ways that Parks -- Parks Department

3

has personnel on both islands, to assist that or

4

or -- or that wouldn't work so you -- you have

5

another option for us to consider?

6

MR. BOTEILHO:

Mr. Chair, we are looking at that and --

7

and we're starting on Molokai because we currently

8

have a staff over there.

9

is training her to help -- help the public more,

And what we're looking at

10

have copies of all the applications there, she would

11

know what the filing fee and -- and -- and the like.

12

As far as Lanai, we could possibly do that too, but

13

it may be something like only so much days a month

14

or something like that.

15

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Okay.

Is there something through

16

our web site that can assist our people on

17

outreached areas?

18

MR. BOTEILHO:

Yes.

In fact, we have all our Planning

19

applications on the County web site and we've been

20

trying to inform as much people as we can about

21

that.

22

you know, in the -- in the paper notifying people of

23

that.

24
25

We're even thinking of possibly putting ads,

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Okay.

And then just one quick one,

using the web site of the County, can an applicant
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1

whether it'd be myself or anyone of us sitting here

2

this morning track the progress of that application?

3

Because part of the frustration is hearing, and you

4

-- you folks know about it in Planning, I think you

5

lost my application, what do you mean you lost my

6

plans, okay?

7

member has heard complaints about plans being

8

misplaced or lost and people have to redo the

9

process.

I mean, I'm sure every single city

So is -- and part of the frustration is of

10

course not knowing where your application is or what

11

progress has been made, if any.

12

for tracking that the community can follow?

So is there a way

13

MR. BOTEILHO:

Mr. Chair, yes, currently there's this KIVA

14

system.

However, Planning is working with MIS right

15

now because we'd like to have it more simplified

16

based on Planning's users needs.

17

users needs, I mean, also the -- all the -- also the

18

public needs.

19

the public go on there is just easy.

20

know, like on the internet, sometimes you just get

21

too much hard time you just

you just close out,

22

you know.

we're looking

23

seriously at that, trying to really make it simple

24

for -- as far as Planning's needs, yes.

25

We'd like to have it very simple so

So we're working

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

And when I say

I mean, you

You have a time estimate for us,
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Mr. Director, six months, ten months --

2

MR. BOTEILHO:

I would say --

3

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

4

MR. BOTEILHO:

-- one year?

-- one year because actually we -- we're

5

trying to see if we need to ask for funding for

6

that.

7

the contractor for direct training to the Planning

8

Department and also system

9
10

Funding would be for us to deal directly with

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Currently within the software

system we use, the --

11

MR. BOTEILHO:

Yes.

12

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

13

MR. BOTEILHO:

Yes.

-- the capabilities.
There's an -- there's an update

14

recently which has -- which has just started now.

15

KIVA is moving more into a seller -- a seller permit

16

permit processing.

And we've looked at it and

17

we think it -- it could fit our needs.

18

know, much more efficient.

19
20
21

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Okay.

Thank you.

It's, you

Thank you,

Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA:

Thank you, Mr. Hokama.

Mr. Boteilho, just

22

a couple follow-up questions.

Under the present

23

system where a building permit is required for

24

temporary tents, this, I guess, causes your

25

department to perform additional reviews, I assume.
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1

Now if we were to exempt these building permits for

2

the temporary tents, how -- how much of an impact

3

will it reduce your processing time and I guess free

4

up your personnel to do our things, what kind of

5

impact will it have?

6

MR. BOTEILHO:

Well, just straight to the point, we would

7

-- we would not have to review those building

8

permits.

9

shouldn't have sent Francis home, but I don't think

Exactly how much and, you know, I knew I

10

it's that much.

11

theory and the policy, it still is a

12

in work and that's something that

13

see especially if it's not -- not necessary.

14

you.

15

CHAIR MOLINA:

But still based on the -- the

Thank you, Mr. Director.

a reduction
that we like to

Any other

16

questions for Mr. Boteilho or Mr. Yoshida?

17

I'll call upon Lieutenant English.

18

Member Tavares had a question for the Fire

19

Department.

20
21
22
23

24
25

Thank

If not,

I believe that

Lieutenant English, you can come up here and
get comfortable with us.
Member Tavares, if you could go ahead and
state your question.
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

Thank you.

Thank you for being here.

In some of the materials that we got and it was
RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

PWT 11/4/04

75

1

referring to like the County of Kauai and County of

2

Hawaii and City and County of Honolulu and what they

3

do, in the County of Kauai, they said the tents that

4

they have are exempted from their ordinance and the

5

only permit required is a use permit from the Fire

6

Department.

7

looks like or their process at all?

8
9

MR. ENGLISH:
not.

Are you familiar with what their permit

Good morning, all Council members.

No, I'm

All I can say is of all like the Building

10

Department on the Building Code, only the Fire Code

11

has a section that addresses temporary tents.

12

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

13

MR. ENGLISH:

14

Uh-huh.

So, right, what Kauai is doing is they're

just leaving the review process to the

15

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

16

MR. ENGLISH:

To the Fire --

-- governing body that enforces the code

17

which is the Fire Department.

18

streamlining everybody else out and let the Fire

19

Department to review it.

20

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

Okay.

So they're probably

You folks are involved in the

21

whole tent processing anyway, right, because you

22

have to review all of them.

23

MR. ENGLISH:

24

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

25

Correct.
So are there things that -- and I

guess in looking at streamlining it and I would -- I
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1

would just want to say that I would like to follow

2

what Kauai is doing, the Fire Department

3

permits through the Fire Department.

4

don't have a problem about the neighbor islands

5

because everyone has fire people on it.

have the

And then we

But, yeah, I'm still -- you know, if there

6

7

are things that are so specialized that the Public

8

Works Department has to be involved, then that's

9

another story.

But I think Mr. Coloma-Agaran told

10

us the last time that they're like the -- the

11

central agency that kind of keeps track of

12

everything.

13

any comments about what if the permit was only

14

required from the Fire Department.

15

MR. ENGLISH:

And so I was just wondering if you had

To streamline the process, I'll probably be

16

in favor of because it won't increase my load

17

anymore.

I'm doing it anyway.

18

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

19

MR. ENGLISH:

Uh-huh.

And because the code that in force enforces

20

the safety for the public and the proper setbacks

21

for the tent, type of material its made.

22

our code kind of draws like the minimum requirement

23

for the tent.

24

be in favor just having me to review it.

25

going to increase my job any more.

I mean,

So to streamline the process I will
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VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

Thank you.

Thank you for those

comments.

3

CHAIR MOLINA:

Thank you, Member Tavares.

4

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Member Kane?

So to follow up on that Lieutenant,

5

you wouldn't have to do any more, and that was kind

6

of my question back to Director Coloma-Agaran.

7

we remove or streamline which is the term being

8

used, wouldn't you be cast with reviewing other

9

components of an overall review process that -- I

If

10

mean, you take care of fire issues with the health

11

and safety related to fire, but there are other

12

issues, building code issues or other issues that

13

maybe the Parks has to look at.

14

If everything is streamlined hypothetically

15

down to just you, wouldn't that in -- in fact add to

16

you having to look at other components of an overall

17

review process that other departments now have?

18

Another -- wouldn't you have to broaden your review

19

from not only fire components which is your --

20

you're directed with your fire code but things

21

beyond that?

22

And if -- if no, then I want to hear you say

23

it because the whole idea is we don't want to

24

compromise health and safety, and -- and that's the

25

whole issue of why we're here, we're trying to
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1

streamline but at the same time make sure we -- we

2

keep intact the integrity of the process.

3

MR. ENGLISH:

Yeah, it wouldn't increase my job.

I guess

4

I will say no.

5

cover like the health and safety of the proposed

6

project going up.

7

written up, who's going to get left out if it's

8

Planning, Water, Health Department, it's how that

9

you guys got to write up the ordinance.

It would -- like I said, I would

As far as how the ordinance is

10

If it comes straight to me, my code doesn't

11

cover things like they need a canopy over somebody

12

cooking the food.

13

As far as the SMA, my -- my code doesn't cover

14

anything like that.

15

property line, vehicles and things like that.

16

how the ordinance is written up is pretty much going

17

to see how far the streamline is going to take

18

effect.

19

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

20
21

That's Health Department code.

Yeah.

It's pretty much setback from

Thank you, Lieutenant.

CHAIR MOLINA:

Thank you, Member Kane.

Any other

questions for Lieutenant English of the Fire

23

Department or Mr. Buck?

25

Thank

you, Chair.

22

24

So

MR. ENGLISH:

Oh, Lieutenant?

I think I can answer Mr. Hokama's question

on the County Fair.

You asked for -- for how the
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1

permits are done for the County Fair.

2

there's like one mass permit for covering the tents

3

from EK Fernandez and the food booths.

4

people extend the food booths or they put up a

5

separate cooking in the back, those are separate

6

permits.

7

separate booths like the soda booths in between that

8

are not permitted, they come for separate permits.

9
10

CHAIR MOLINA:

They come for individual.

Okay.

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Basically

When the

And things like

Member Hokama?
Lieutenant, thank you for -- for

11

your comments.

12

Memorial, we have the giant tents, the exhibition

13

tent which is very large and -- and I, you know, I'm

14

sure we all have our concerns that it be safe.

15

There's also temporary wooden structures by the

16

cooking area.

17

department viewed differently from the tents even if

18

it's just for that very short temporary time also,

19

you view it differently because it's a different

20

material?

21

MR. ENGLISH:

You know, certain events at War

Is those structures in -- in your

Under Article 32 we do have -- and our

22

definition on temporary structure does cover small

23

wooden booths on a situation like that.

24

get covered in the fire code.

25

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Okay.

So it will

And -- and so I would ask
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1

Mr. Mateo, is that something, you know, that would

2

be of a concern.

3

we've talked a lot about tents.

4

now, yeah, that we have, you know, very short-term

5

temporary wooden facilities too made out of lumbar

6

and whether or not this is to be considered as part

7

of this proposal, revised proposal this morning or

8
9

10

or not.
Chairman.

I mean, we -- we focused on tents,

I -- I just

But I just recall

I'll bring it up,

I -- only -- my intent was only to bring

it up before the Committee.

11

CHAIR MOLINA:

12

MR. ENGLISH:

Lieutenant English?
I'm not sure if the building code will have

13

-- cover something as far as the small wooden

14

booths like for

15

fireworks booth that we used to see before.

16

sure if the building code covers that.

17

code does cover it and it's pretty much the same

18

kind of setbacks as far as the tents and the sizes

19

and stuff like that.

20

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

21

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

one of them is Christmas tree and
I'm not

Our fire

Thank you.
Thank you.

Any other questions for

22

Parks, Fire Department or Public Works Directors?

23

Member Pontanilla?

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:
Works.

I got a question for Public

Reading through this ordinance, I -- I note
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1

that there's a section here unless otherwise exempt

2

by the appropriate plumbing or electrical codes,

3

separate plumbing and electrical permits will be

4

required for the above-mentioned exempt work.

5

I'm -- I'm looking at any temporary structure tents,

6

if they do have electrical uses, they still need to

7

abide by the electrical codes and -- and require

8

electrical permits, am I right?

9

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

So

Yes, that's right.

10

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

11

CHAIR MOLINA:

12

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

13

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

14

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

15

CHAIR MOLINA:

16

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

17

CHAIR MOLINA:

18

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

okay.

Thank you.

Okay.

Okay.

And same thing with plumbing?

Yes.
Okay.

Thank you, Member Pontanilla.
Mr. Chair?

Oh, go ahead.
One thing to clarify with some of the

19

comments from the other agencies is exempting the

20

building permit process from considering temporary

21

tents in this area doesn't automatically remove the

22

reviews by those other agencies on their own

23

permits.

24

that review is not going to get triggered by the

25

fact that this building permit comes by and they

They're just not going to do -- get
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1

suddenly realize someone's having a particular event

2

that

3

need to consider the fire code.

that they need to consider the SMA or they

4

Because basically, as I explained at the last

5

meeting, we sort of serve as a routing agency as

6

well as looking at our code provisions.

7

this exemption in the building code just means that

8

the building code issues are not going to be

9

considered.

So creating

But if they're still within the SMA,

10

certainly they're going to have to -- they'll

11

someone will have to get an SMA permit or get an

12

exemption and that's -- that's another issue.

13
14
15

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you, Mr. Director.

Any other

comments or questions?
The Chair has just one question for the Parks

16

Director, Mr. Buck.

I presume you have your own

17

guidelines and rules regarding events and the

18

installation of temporary tents.

19

on -- or concerns about this where, I guess, the

20

assumption is basically to have the Parks Department

21

to be the sole department that will, you know,

22

address the temporary tents issue, any -- I think I

23

-- forgive me if I missed it earlier in your earlier

24

comments, can you again elaborate and share with us

25

any concerns with the Committee?

Any other comment
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MR. BUCK:

The department is

is

is concerned about

2

the safety and welfare of the public when they come

3

to special events.

4

about temporary structures and wooden structures.

5

We would probably tell if the -- if the applicant

6

was going to build temporary wooden structures to

7

insure that that structure is safe, we would

8

probably require them

9

probably require them to go and get a building

And, you know, we were talking

our department would

10

permit just to review the plans, how the structures

11

are going to be built.

12

Our concern has been as far as the tent, the

13

small tents that are used year after year, the same

14

layout and everything else, we would still work with

15

the various agencies as far as that all other issues

16

are addressed.

17

English all the time in regards to tenting.

18

kind of anal sometimes about some of the

19

requirements and -- and -- and I may be more

20

strict.

21

realize that it's important when we do this.

22

We work closely with Lieutenant
I get

In other words, I try and get the people to

But anything over a certain size, we always

23

have them go check with the Fire Department because

24

I do know that after 400 -- if there's 400 square

25

feet, they need to go see the Fire Department.
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1

got to have the certificate of -- fire retardant.

2

know they're going to require fire extinguishers.

3

It's not made to say how many fire extinguishers you

4

needed for your -- your tent and all that.

5

I

And it's the same thing with crowd control. I

6

require when -- especially when I was down in the

7

South District in the event they had, they had to

8

have a evacuation plan, you know, in case there's an

9

emergency which way -- which direction are you going

10
11

to have traffic.

I wanted a traffic plan.

So we do try -- and we're trying to -- the

12

process now trying to put a book together.

13

working on it.

14

but what we're trying to do is take all of our

15

requirements and then the requirements of the

16

various departments and put a booklet together so

17

when somebody comes and ask us for a permit to do a

18

special event, they'll know what the requirements

19

are going to be and then that way we will have

20

consistency and also a check-off and we've been

21

working on that.

22

We're

I can't give you a deadline on it,

We're not going to -- even though we're not

23

going to require -- if this thing goes through where

24

you're not requiring a building permit for the tent,

25

we're still going to be concerned how the tent is
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1

constructed because we do not want to see the tent

2

to flyaway.

3

hurt because that would put up a -- I have, again,

4

more concerns about when they erect tents for

5

birthday parties and wedding receptions in -- in our

6

facilities.

7

individuals who are renting our facilities go

8

through the same process as we do for special events

9

be it for-profit or nonprofit.

10

CHAIR MOLINA:

We do not want to see somebody get

And right now we do not have those

Thank you, Mr. Buck, and I appreciate those

11

comments.

The only reason I asked that was I just

12

want to make sure or insure that you folks are

13

networking with each other and keeping close tabs

14

because I think it's very good to be anal

15

especially when it comes to public safety.
Any other comments or questions for our

16

17

various department representatives?

18

the Chair's recommendation, Chair's going to call

19

for a short recess.

20

(Gavel.)

21

RECESS:

22

RECONVENE:

23

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Prior to

We shall reconvene at 11:15.

11:13 a.m.
11:20 a.m.

(Gavel.)

Public Works and Traffic

24

Committee meeting for November 4th is now back in

25

session.

Thank you very much, Members, for that
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extended recess.
Chair was a little bit premature in

2
3

announcing his recommendation.

4

before the Chair announces his recommendation let's

5

have a discussion on this matter.

6

Members, any comments prior to the Chair's

7

recommendation?

8

Vice-Chair.

9

So at this point

Committee

We'll start first with the

Member Tavares?

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

Yeah, thank you.

I think you were

10

going to ask Mr. Coloma-Agaran a question about the

11

-- the permit.

12

CHAIR MOLINA:

13

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

14

CHAIR MOLINA:

15

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

16

CHAIR MOLINA:

If you ask him that first

Yes.
-- and then we could --

Thank you.
-- frame the discussion.

Thank you, Member Tavares.

17

Mr. Coloma-Agaran, in your opinion, again, the way

18

currently one is required to get a building permit,

19

do you feel if we exempt this part of the process,

20

do you feel the park user has more assurance

21

regarding safety or do you believe that the -- just

22

having the Parks Department, just their oversight is

23

adequate, you know, if -- if we were to exempt your

24

review for a building permit and just basically turn

25

it allover to Parks, do you feel comfortable and
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that this is adequate in terms of public safety?
MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

Again, I -- from listening to what the

3

Deputy Park Director said and also what the

4

Lieutenant English said, exempting us just removes

5

our review of our code.

6

they'll still need to get a sign-off from the Fire

7

Department for -- and to take -- that will take care

8

a lot of the health and safety issues.
And I have to

9

For certain types of tents,

I would have to think that

10

the Parks Department is going to be very careful in

11

making sure that any structures erected on their

12

property, that they're going to take a look at

13

health and safety issues as well.

14

comfortable with giving up our primary role of

15

routing the building permit to alert the other

16

agencies how a particular event proposes the use of

17

a structure.

18
19

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

So I think we're

Thank you, Mr. Director.

Members, discussion or any questions?

Any

Member Kane?

20

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

It's okay.

21

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Yeah, just one question for the Parks

22

Department.

Do you folks physically inspect tents

23

that go up prior to a -- an activity commencing?

24

there some sort of

25

well, I'm going to talk about just on County

just again, especially
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property.
MR. BUCK:

Most of the special events our staff does go

3

out and -- and kind of look how its been set up more

4

for the safety.

5

is what these exemptions are morally for, I don't

6

have as much problems as I do, again, if there's a

7

private birthday party going on at our community

8

centers, you know, we have, you know, all these

9

community centers, with a special wedding, you know,

As far as special events and this

10

with weddings, birthday parties, they do at times

11

erect tents and the bouncing castles and that's --

12

we've probably had more problems with those than

13

we've had with special events.

14

because it is open to the public.

15

concerned about the safety.
But I

16

We do special events
We're more

like I say a hundred percent of the

17

time that we are

it is a priority with the staff

18

to be sure.

and a lot of times our staff

19

does go watch the erection or work with the erection

20

of these tents because they don't want to have the

21

tents being spiked into irrigation heads and

22

waterlines and things like that.

23

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

24

CHAIR MOLINA:

25

And

Thank you.

Thank you, Chair.

Thank you, Member Kane.

Member Tavares,

you had a question?
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VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

Yeah, could we ask the same question

to the Fire Department?
CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Lieutenant English?

I guess maybe

4

Member Kane, could you restate your question to the

5

Fire Department?

6

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

Do you inspect the -- the tents or

7

temporary structures after they've passed through

8

and gotten your approvals and things, do you follow

9

up with inspections?

10

MR. ENGLISH:

On the major ones like the County Fair, very

11

large erected tents, yes, we do.

12

to use the Kennel Club, they put up like three

13

20 x 20 tents, we don't show up on them to check out

14

all the tents.

15

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

On I'm just going

But on the larger ones, yes, we do.
Okay.

Thank you.

Is there a size

16

that triggers your going there or just kind of on a

17

feel when you see a permit come across that maybe

18

you should check this out?

19

MR. ENGLISH:

It -- it kind of deals with the event, how

20

much people are going to be in the area, if they're

21

serving -- if they have a liquor license and things

22

like that.

23

setbacks on the tables inside the tent in case you

24

got to evacuate, the proper restraints over the tent

25

down.

So we make sure the, yeah, the proper

It's more -- based on more on the event, how
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many people is going to be in that area.

2

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

3

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you.

Just to follow up on that question,

4

Lieutenant.

5

that would kind of trigger you folks into taking a

6

physical inspection, like a hundred people or more

7

or something like that?

8
9

10

MR. ENGLISH:

So what would be the amount of people

Probably about over 300, when I get to a

larger assembly, 300 people.
CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you.

Committee Members, any

11

other questions or comments for our department

12

heads?

13

Okay.

Any discussion all that's being considered?
Seeing none, in your --

14

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

15

CHAIR MOLINA:

16

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

Oh, discussion now?

Yes.
I just wanted to -- you know, and you

17

helped clarify it during the break and thank you for

18

that little side bar.

19

ordinance that's before us today because I do

20

believe the -- the Parks Department takes very

21

seriouslY the responsibility in the health and

22

safety of the public at events held on -- on the

23

Parks property.

24

question is, is it just County parks or does it

25

cover -- or is this ordinance going to cover

You know, I can support the

My question actually -- another
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county-owned land?
CHAIR MOLINA:

My assumption is it's supposed to be on

3

County parks and I guess anything to do with

4

recreational facilities.

5

clarification from Corporation Counsel.

6
7

8
9

MS. YOUNG:

Maybe we can get a

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

That is correct, it

would be our parks and recreational facilities.
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

Okay.

So if somebody wanted to erect

a tent out here in the front lawn of this County

10

building, they would still go through the same --

11

the -- the process as it exist, they wouldn't be

12

exempted?

13

MS. YOUNG:

They -- they would be exempt under the current

14

proposed bill.

15

it goes beyond parks and recreational facilities.

16

It's all County-owned property.

17

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

I'm sorry, I should clarify.

County-owned property.

It--

So the Parks

18

Department understand that they may have to deal

19

with permits?

20

Works Department through this bill?

21

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

22

CHAIR MOLINA:

23

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

24
25

Are we bypassing the -- the Public

If I may, Mr. Chair.

Proceed, Mr. Director.
I -- I think because there's no

language in here about Park specifically -VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

Uh-huh.
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MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

-- what we are looking at is each of

2

the -- each entity might own that County property,

3

you know.

4

property would be responsible for dealing with the

5

erection of tents.

6

going to do something at one of our base yards, then

7

we would

8

that and making sure that the Fire Department's

9

concerns and other agencies, that they're taken into

The

the agency that controls our

So for example, if somebody was

our own department would be looking at

10

account.

The primary property owning agencies are

11

going to be our department, Parks, Water, Water

12

Supply has some base yards.

13

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

14

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

Uh-huh.
But it's going to be rare for

15

non-County people to be using those areas to erect

16

these tents.

17

entity that owns -- holds County property would

18

probably be Health and Human Concerns.

19

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

20

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

The only other -- the only other

Like the senior centers and stuff.
Yeah, and I -- I think we would want

21

to -- I think we would still try to work with them

22

on that.

23

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

Uh-huh, okay.

Thank you.

And just

24

-- just as a note, I think we're addressing one

25

particular need or situation that Mr. Mateo brought
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1

up, and I think anytime that we try to make it

2

easier for the public to conduct their activities

3

that's -- to me that's positive.

4

to see this revisited in light of letters and

5

comments that we got regarding temporary structures

6

on private property such as the hotels and on some

7

other places that would be putting up on private --

8

you know, more commercial

9

or noncommercial, but not on County property.

But I would like

whether it's commercial
So I

10

think that, Mr. Chairman, I would be interested in

11

submitting that in the next term.

12

this out of Committee and file it, I -- I don't have

13

a problem with it.

14

CHAIR MOLINA:

So if we do pass

Thank you.

Thank you very much, Member Tavares.

15

Committee Members, any comments or concerns prior to

16

the Chair's recommendation?

17

Chair's recommendation is the passage of the

18

proposed bill as revised and the filing of the

19

communications.

20

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

21

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

22

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Okay.

Seeing none, the

So move.
Second.

Its been moved by Member Tavares and

23

seconded by Member Pontanilla.

24

the maker of the motion, you have the floor.

25

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

Member Tavares, as

I think -- I think we had the
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discussion already.
CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you.

Any other discussion?

Seeing none,

all --

4

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

5

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

6

CHAIR MOLINA:

7

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Chair?
Chair?

Member Hokama?
I'm going to support this with

8

reservations and my

my concern is the language

9

County property.

I thought in my mind we're

I

10

specifically talking about basically parks,

11

community centers of the County.

12

lot of land lately that's County property, you

13

know.

14

preparation and maintenance of an inventory of all

15

County aspects including real property as our chief

16

steward of those assets.

17

that from -- from my point of view if we --

18

including all County property as I understood

19

Corporation Counsel's comment a few minutes ago

20

extends to the whole inventory, and I don't know if

21

that's something we want to do.

22

We've purchased a

Finance Director is responsible for the

So I just share that

My second comment, Mr. Chairman, is while I

23

can appreciate the proposal from our colleague

24

Mr. Mateo of Molokai for Council and/or legislative

25

action, I think some of the departments have shown
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1

they're responsible and try to do what they could to

2

address the concern of long processing time and of

3

the other concerns, but I'm still not satisfied with

4

the department -- some of the other department's

5

lack of progress.

6

managing director would use his position to try and

7

do some better coordination within all impacted

8

departments to see what they can do administratively

9

within their authority given by the code and the

And I would hope that the

10

council because at times there comes a point when

11

should it be a legislative revision in the code.
I think part of the comment of Ms. Tavares

12
13

that we may need to review this down the road is --

14

is pertinent, and I will be looking forward to see

15

whether or not the department such as Planning can

16

come forward with a better option and solution to

17

the concerns, Chair.

18
19
20

CHAIR MOLINA:

Thank you.

So noted, Member Hokama.

Discussion?

Member Kane?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Yeah, and thank you, Chair, and I

21

appreciate Member Hokama bringing forward his -- his

22

supportive vote but with the reservations.

23

and just note that in the section one of our

24

ordinance, that it specifically talks about events

25

in County parks and recreational facilities.
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1

I'm trying to see how the amended language and --

2

and

3

county property and should it be -- and

and if

4

I'm misconstruing this, then, please, I

I'd like

5

to be corrected.

under letter B, No. 23, got brought into

6

But it seems like consistency would -- would

7

be appropriate if we cite what we have in Section 1

8

and pass it on into section B where it would read

9

erected and County -- well, County parks and

10

recreational facilities.

11

controlled because sometimes we don't own the park

12

but we're leasing the park long-term, Baldwin Park

13

as an example.

14

And I use the word

And so I -- I just want to put that out on

15

the table if that's something that we'd like to have

16

a consideration for an amendment now and some

17

discussion on that so we can do it right now instead

18

of passing it on and then having to have some

19

additional discussion on -- on the Council floor at

20

a later date.

21

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Well, Mr. Kane, the Chair is open to

22

any proposed amendments or considerations at this

23

time.

24

implement into the proposed ordinance, the Chair is

25

open.

If that is something that you would like to
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Before I do that, Chair, if -- if

2

maybe Corporation Counsel can -- and -- can comment

3

on the language in section 1 compared to the section

4

B in No. 23 on Page 3 of the revised bill.

5

CHAIR MOLINA:

6

MS. YOUNG:

Okay.

corporation Counsel?

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Subsection B I

7

believe was amended several times in our office and

8

initially was tied to a park permit.

9

the revision I believe the language County --

10

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

11

MS. YOUNG:

And through

Property.

-- County parks and recreational facilities as

12

-- as stated in section 1 of the proposed bill got

13

revised to County property.

14

back.

15

language or the SUbstantive portion of the bill

16

consistent with section I, the purpose and intent

17

section.

18

I

So we could put that

I do agree that that would make the

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you, Chair.

And also if we can

19

provide comment or -- or can we have -- ask for

20

comment maybe from Deputy Parks Director as well as

21

from Corporation Counsel with the consideration of

22

the word, and I don't know if it's the correct word

23

but I'll put it in the table and if it needs to be

24

changed, but the word controlled prior -- prior to

25

parks.

Because, again, if we're dealing with County
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1

or if we're dealing with properties that we don't

2

own but we do have control over via long-term lease

3

arrangements, that those places would also be

4

considered in this discussion as well or -- or

5

incorporated into the -- the intent of this bill.

6

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

And just for clarification, Mr.

7

Kane, where would you like to see the word control

8

put in?

9

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

If the word is considered, then in

10

subsection B of No. 23 on Page 3.

11

-- not my language, but the language to be

12

considered erected in County controlled Parks and

13

Recreation facilities.

14

CHAIR MOLINA:

15

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

My -- my language

In County controlled, okay.
And I don't -- again, I don't know if

16

that's the right word.

17

like to put it on the table for discussion.

18
19
20

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

That's why I just -- I'd

We'll start first with Mr. Buck to

be followed by Corporation Counsel.
MR. BUCK:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I would like to see

21

that the -- the word control versus all Parks and

22

Recreation facilities because we do have, for

23

example, Kaunakakai, a ballpark that we're leasing

24

from.

25

control because we do have parks that we do have

So, yeah, I would -- I'm in favor of the word
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1

special events that we do lease or have an

2

agreement.
I would also like to see that the ordinance

3

4

be -- would say, again, Parks and Recreation

5

facilities because I think the intent of this

6

ordinance change or the change in this ordinance was

7

related to all the special events that are taking

8

place on Parks and Recreation facilities.

9

personally, speaking on behalf of the department, we

And

10

wouldn't want to be responsible for base yards, you

11

know, the County building and -- and a few other

12

entities.
So I think the intent of this bill was for

13

14

Parks and Recreation facilities, and I would like to

15

see that as suggested by Mr. Kane that that's how

16

the ordinance would read.

17

CHAIR MOLINA:

18

MS. YOUNG:

Okay.

Thank you, Mr. Buck.

Ms. Young?

What we could do, I -- I don't see any problem

19

with the language, we could just work with that

20

language to make it specific to your needs.

21

could do that.

22

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

We

Then Mr. Chair, without objection,

23

instead of passing what we have in front of us and

24

then doing the changes, I prefer that we actually

25

vote on an amendment now and then send it to Council
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1

as revised, unless there's something that through

2

this discussion Corporation Counsel would object to.
The proposed amendment, if I may, Chair,

3

4

would be two places to change.

5

No. 23 on Page 3, we would bracket out on and then

6

insert erected on, excuse me, on -- no, excuse me,

7

leave on, we would insert the word controlled after

8

County; we would strike the word property and we

9

would incorporate controlled Parks and Recreation

Subsection B of

10

facilities.

11

be consistent, in section 1 we would also

12

incorporate the word controlled between County and

13

the word

14
15

CHAIR MOLINA:

That's the first change.

parks.
Okay.

That is your motion to amend, Member

Kane?

16

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

Second.

17

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Yes.

18

CHAIR MOLINA:

19

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

20

Okay.

Motion on the floor is to amend.
If we can comment for clarity 'cause

it --

21

CHAIR MOLINA:

22

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

23

And then to

Okay.
sounds like Mr. Agaran has

something to say.

24

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

25

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

Mr. Director?
Mr. Chair, I just -- maybe something

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

PWT 11/4/04

101

1

to just to lay on the table.

2

word you want to keep in there.

3

the Lahaina Aquatic Center, there was a basin there

4

that Parks controls and that's the site that was

5

used for the Taste of Lahaina for a number of years.

6

I don't know if there are other events that would

7

want to be -- might entail putting up a tent there.

8

I -- I can't remember if Taste of Lahaina would set

9

up tents.

10

Property might be a
For example, near

But I don't know if that would fit within the

11

definition of a County controlled park or County

12

recreational facility necessarily.

13

based -- it was basically an open field basin.

14

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

15

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

I mean, it's

It's a retention basin.
Right.

And so the property -- well, I

16

-- I don't know how you might want to -- I don't

17

know how you're going to get around it.

18

I wasn't privy to the discussions in the Corp

19

Counsel's office that made it more general, but they

20

might have been thinking that there are facilities

21

that don't quite fit in to parks and recreational

22

facilities that we're aware of argues by the public.

23

Another area which Lieutenant English

So I mean,

24

mentioned of course is the banyan tree in Lahaina,

25

which while it's not clear that we say it's County
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or state property but we know that there are events

2

that are held there.

3

of worms, but there are those -- those other areas.

4

So it may be that while this started off as really

5

focusing on parks and recreational facilities, it

6

-- if it makes sense to allow agencies that manage

7

those areas to, you know, be responsible for the

8

permitting, you -- you need to look at whether you

9

want to stay with the broad language.

10
11

12

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

comments.

I don't want to open up a can

Members, you've heard the Director's

Member Kane?

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you, Chair, and I appreciate

13

those comments.

14

-- the whole intent of this is to provide

15

exemptions.

16

scope of the parks and the recreational facilities,

17

i.e. of retention basin or -- or some other place,

18

it wouldn't hurt us to continue having the permit

19

process, the building permit process intact.

20

think it -- we can just step through this process.

21

However, because we're dealing with

And when we look at things beyond the

I

And if down the road we see that there's a

22

problem, and keep in mind we're -- we're, you know,

23

again, we're just exempting a process.

24

we're not adding something in there, so nothing

25

would change, in other words, for the Lahaina

We're not
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1

retention basin, nothing would change for the

2

banyan.

3

current process.

They would still have to go through the

What we're talking about is with the spirit

4
5

intent of this is in the Park and Recreation

6

facility areas that are controlled by the County.

7

So I think the information is important for us to,

8

you know, to consider, but I feel comfortable with

9

us considering this amendment and incorporating it

10
11

into the bill and I'll be supporting the amendment.
CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you, Member Kane.

We do have

12

an amendment on the floor proposed by Member Kane

13

and seconded by Member Tavares.

14

amendment?

15

Discussion on the

Member Hokama?

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Thank you, Chairman.

So not to

16

belabor it, but I would ask the Members and Mr.

17

Kane, hearing his concerns and comments, that we

18

we may be able to accomplish it by just saying

19

County controlled property as administered by the

20

Parks and Recreation Department.

21

may resolve the concerns of other areas and -- and

22

things such as that basin next to Lahaina Aquatic

23

and the banyan tree sites, Chairman.

24
25

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Member Hokama?

And I think that

Any comments on that suggestion from
Member Kane?
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Mr. Chair, as a friendly amendment I

2

have no problem with that and I think it -- it just

3

comes right back to who's managing this property

4

since it was brought up in earlier discussion that

5

the relevant agencies or departments of the County

6

would be managing theirs when the discussion was on

7

property.

8

recreational facilities for these nonprofit types of

9

events for temporary tents, I think what Member

But because the intent is for parks and

10

Hokama brings forward is -- is an appropriate

11

consideration to revise the intent of this or revise

12

the language to meet the intent.

13

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you, Member Kane.

The Chair

14

has no objections to Member Hokama's friendly

15

amendment to the amendment.

16

Members?

Any objections,

Member Tavares?

17

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

Can you repeat

18

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Yeah, thank you.

19

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

Try repeat it again.

20

CHAIR MOLINA:

21

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Mr. Hokama, if you will.
Thank you.

If you look at Section

22

1, it would read from the third line for events in

23

County controlled property as administered by the

24

Department of Parks and Recreation that continue no

25

more than 72 hours.
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1

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

2

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

3

4
5

Okay.

Thank you.

And that would be the same and

on Page 3, Mr. Chairman, under 23, section B.
CHAIR MOLINA:

So noted, Member Hokama.

Member Tavares,

any other comments?

6

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

7

CHAIR MOLINA:

8

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

9

CHAIR MOLINA:

No, is that word fine, administered?

I have no objections.

Well, let's ask --

Corp Counsel?

-- Corporation Counsel.

10

MS. YOUNG:

I believe that's fine.

11

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

12

CHAIR MOLINA:

13

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

14

CHAIR MOLINA:

That's fine?

Okay.

Okay.

Okay.

15

floor.

16

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

17

CHAIR MOLINA:

Thank you.
Members, we have an amendment on the

Any other discussion?
It's a friendly amendment, yeah?

Well, yeah, a friendly amendment to the

18

amendment on the floor.

19

Okay.

20

favor of the amendment as proposed signify by saying

21

There we go, specify that.

Seeing no other discussion, all those in

"aye".

22

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.

23

CHAIR MOLINA:

All those opposed?

24
25
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AYES:

2

5

NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
EXC. :
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

6

CHAIR MOLINA:

3
4

Councilmembers Hokama, Kane,
Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Tavares and
Chair Molina.
None.
None.
None.
None.
Approval of amendment.

Thank you.

The Chair marks it unanimous.

7

We are now back to the original motion on the floor

8

on the proposed bill as amended.

9

All those in favor signify it by saying "aye".

10

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.

11

CHAIR MOLINA:

12

VOTE:

All those opposed?

AYES:

13

14
15
16

Any discussion?

NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
EXC. :
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Councilmembers Hokama, Kane,
Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Tavares and
Chair Molina.
None.
None.
None.
None.
FIRST READING of revised bill and
FILING of communication.

17

18
19
20
21
22
23

24
25

CHAIR MOLINA:

Thank you.

The Chair will mark it

unanimous.
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

It includes the filing of the

communication?
CHAIR MOLINA:

And this includes the filing of the

communication.

Thank you, Member Tavares.

Any announcements, Members?
one announcement.

The Chair has

The Chair wants to congratulate
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1

all of you on your endeavors that you accomplished

2

in the last couple of days, so congratulations for

3

all your hard work.

4

to all the department representatives, thank you all

5

very much for participating in today's meeting.

6

as always, the Chair thanks all of you for your

7

diligence and hard work and professionalism and

8

dedication to duty.

9

adjourned.

10

ADJOURN:

And to our Committee staff and

It is 11:45.

And

This meeting is

(Gavel.)

11:45 a.m.

11

12
13

14
15
16

17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24
25
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C E R T I F I CAT E

1

2

)

STATE OF HAWAII

)

3

4

COUNTY OF HONOLULU

SSe

)

5

6

I, Cristina V. Llewellyn, certified Shorthand

7

Reporter for the state of Hawaii, hereby certify that the

8

proceedings were taken down by me in machine shorthand and

9

was thereafter reduced to typewritten form under my

10

supervision; that the foregoing represents to the best of

11

my ability, a true and correct transcript of the

12

proceedings had in the foregoing matter.

13

I further certify that I am not attorney for any of

14

the parties hereto, nor in any way concerned with the

15

cause.
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DATED this 30th day of November, 2004, in Honolulu,
Hawaii.
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Cristina V.
wellyn, CSR NO. 343
Notary Public, state of Hawaii
My Commission Expires: 04/19/05
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